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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors),
| am pleased to present the annual report of Kingland Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2024 (the “Financial
Year 2024”).

The Group is an established subcontractor engaged in concrete
demolition works for more than 30 years. The concrete demoalition
industry is one of the specific areas of the construction industry
which mainly concerns the removal of pieces or sections of
concrete from concrete structures and the demolition of the entire
concrete structures or buildings.

For the Financial Year 2024, the Group’s revenue decreased
by approximately HK$24.1 million to approximately HK$97.1
million, compared with approximately HK$121.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Financial Year 2023”). The
Group’s net profits decreased by approximately HK$0.8 million
from approximately HK$1.3 million for the Financial Year 2023
to approximately HK$0.5 million for the Financial Year 2024. The
modest decrease in net profit of HK$0.8 million was mainly due
to the provision for impairment losses on trade receivables and
contract assets.

In the Financial Year 2024, our Group faced challenges as the
global economy continued to suffer from prolonged high interest
rates and geopolitical tensions. In Hong Kong, the construction
industry experienced a slowdown due to reduced activities in
the private sector. Despite these obstacles, our Group managed
to enhance our gross profit margin by focusing on projects with
higher profitability, implementing stringent cost control measures,
and optimising resource management.

The Chief Executive’s 2024 Policy Address announced to
expedite the implementation of economic and housing-related
projects in the Northern Metropolis. This initiative is anticipated
to revitalize the construction sector in the coming years. We are
cautiously optimistic about the future and are dedicated to actively
participating in project tenders to leverage emerging opportunities
in the market.

Lastly, | would like to take this opportunity to express my respect
and appreciation to my fellow Board members, management
team and staff members for their continued effort to our Group’s
development and build value to our customers, and express my
sincere gratitude to shareholders (the “Shareholders”) for their
persistent support.

Cheung Shek On
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 March 2025
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The Group’s principal activity is the provision of concrete demolition
services in Hong Kong and Macau mainly as a subcontractor. Our
services are mainly required in the removal of pieces or sections
of concrete from concrete structures and the demolition of the
entire concrete structures or buildings by applying a variety of
methods, such as core drilling, sawing and crushing. Our services
are required in many different situations including, among others,
addition and alteration works and redevelopment projects in
buildings, roads, tunnels and underground facilities.

We have been operating in the concrete demolition industry in
Hong Kong since 1985. We have also been providing concrete
demolition services in Macau since 2006. We are a registered
subcontractor for general demolition and other (concrete coring
and saw cutting) works under the Subcontractor Registration
Scheme of the Construction Industry Council and a Registered
Minor Works Contractor at the Buildings Department.

In general, our customers are main contractors in various types
of construction and civil engineering projects in Hong Kong and
construction projects in Macau. We undertake jobs in both public
and private sectors. Public sector jobs refer to jobs which the
main contractors are employed by the Hong Kong Government,
the Macau Government or their respective related organisations
or corporations, while private sector jobs refer to jobs that are not
public sector jobs.

In the Financial Year 2024, our Group faced challenges as the
global economy continued to suffer from prolonged high interest
rates and geopolitical tensions. In Hong Kong, the construction
industry experienced a slowdown due to reduced activities in the
private sector. Despite these obstacles, our Group enhanced
our gross profit margin. We sharpened our strategic focus by
dedicating more resources to high-technology projects requiring
advanced technical skills and innovative execution. We also
implemented stringent cost control measures and optimised
resource management.

The Chief Executive’s 2024 Policy Address announced to
expedite the implementation of economic and housing-related
projects in the Northern Metropolis. This initiative is anticipated
to revitalise the construction sector in the coming years. We are
cautiously optimistic about the future and are dedicated to actively
participating in project tenders to leverage emerging opportunities
in the market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN WKk DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Financial Year 2024, our Group’s revenue was mainly
derived from concrete demolition business in Hong Kong. The
Group’s revenue for the Financial Year 2024 was approximately
HK$97.1 million, representing a decrease of approximately 19.9%
from approximately HK$121.2 million for the Financial Year 2023.
The tailing off in turnover contribution from certain sizable projects
as they approach project completion at the end of 2023 has
lowered the turnover of the Group for the Financial Year 2024.

Our Group’s gross profit increased from approximately HK$29.5
million for the Financial Year 2023 to approximately HK$31.9
million for the Financial Year 2024, and the gross profit margin
increased from approximately 24.3% for the Financial Year 2023
to approximately 32.9% for the Financial Year 2024, which was
mainly due to the decrease in machinery rental expenses and
transportation expenses.

Administrative and other operating expenses slightly increased
by approximately HK$0.3 million (representing an increase of
approximately 1.1%) to approximately HK$28.8 million for the
Financial Year 2024, compared with HK$28.5 million for the
Financial Year 2023, which remained stable.

For the Financial Year 2024, the Group recorded impairment
losses on financial assets and contract assets amounting to
approximately HK$3.7 million (the Financial Year 2023: a reversal
of impairment losses of approximately HK$0.8 million). The
Group wrote off trade receivables and contract assets totaling
approximately HK$4.4 million, as the recovery from certain entities
within the same customer group is no longer deemed reasonably
achievable.

The Group recorded a net profit of approximately HK$0.5 million
for the Financial Year 2024, compared to approximately HK$1.3
million for the Financial Year 2023. The modest decrease in
net profit of HK$0.8 million was mainly due to the provision for
impairment losses on trade receivables and contract assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s current ratio was
approximately 1.5 (31 December 2023: approximately 1.3).
The Group had total assets of approximately HK$61.9 million
(81 December 2023: approximately HK$71.5 million), which
are financed by total liabilities and shareholders’ equity of
approximately HK$38.0 million (31 December 2023: approximately
HK$48.1 million) and HK$23.9 million (31 December 2023:
approximately HK$23.4 million), respectively. As at 31 December
2024, the Group had cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$8.5 million (31 December 2023: approximately HK$11.9
million). As at 31 December 2024, the Group had interest-bearing
debts of approximately HK$17.1 million, which included bank
and other borrowings and lease liabilities (31 December 2023:
approximately HK$20.5 million).

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio is calculated based on the total loans and
borrowings and lease liabilities divided by total equity as at the
respective reporting date. As at 31 December 2024, the Group
recorded a gearing ratio of approximately 71.5% (31 December
2023: approximately 87.6%).

Capital Expenditure

During the Financial Year 2024, there was a capital expenditure of
approximately HK$2.6 million which was used in the purchase of
property, plant and equipment, compared to HK$0.9 million for the
Financial Year 2023.

Treasury Policy

The Group adopts a prudent approach in capital management
towards its treasury policies. The Group strives to reduce exposure
to credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments and
evaluations of the financial status of its customers. To manage
liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity
position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s
assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet its funding
requirements from time to time.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly operates in Macau and Hong Kong with most of
the Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions principally
denominated in HK$ and Macau Pataca (“MOP”). The Group is
exposed to currency risk arising from currency exposures primarily
with respect to MOP, mainly attributable to the exposure on
outstanding receivables and payables denominated in MOP.

Most of the MOP denominated monetary assets and liabilities at
the end of the Financial Year 2024 are held under the Group’s
subsidiary in Macau. As MOP is pegged to HKS$, the foreign
currency risk is considered insignificant, and hence the Group
does not engage in any hedging activity.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN WKk DM

Capital Structure
The share capital of the Group only comprises of ordinary shares.

As at 31 December 2024, the Company’s issued share capital
was HK$12,096,000 (31 December 2023: HK$12,096,000) and
the number of its issued ordinary shares was 241,920,000 (31
December 2023: 241,920,000) of HK$0.05 each (31 December
2023: HK$0.05 each).

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Availability of construction and civil engineering projects in
Hong Kong and Macau

Our results of operations are affected by the number and
availability of construction and civil engineering projects from the
public and private sectors in Hong Kong and construction projects
from the private sector in Macau, which in turn are affected by
various factors, including but not limited to the general economic
conditions in Hong Kong and Macau, changes in government
policies relating to the Hong Kong and Macau property markets,
the general conditions of the property markets in Hong Kong and
Macau, and the amount of investment in the construction of new
infrastructure and improvement of existing infrastructure.

In the event that the availability of concrete demolition jobs
decreases as a result of the decrease in the number of private
and/or public sector projects in Hong Kong and/or Macau, our
businesses and results of operations may be adversely and
materially affected.

Our business is subject to the risk of cost overrun and job
extension or delay

In pricing a tender or quotation, we are required to estimate the job
costs based on various factors such as (i) the estimated number
and types of workers required; (i) the estimated number and types
of machinery required; and (i) the need for subcontracting and
machinery leasing. Any deviation between the estimated cost
by the time we submit the tenders or quotations and the actual
costs to complete the jobs may adversely affect our financial
performance and profitability. For instance, if the actual progress
of a project is slower than we anticipated, or if there is any delay or
extension in the project schedule of main contractor, we may have
to engage subcontractors and/or lease the required machineries
for a longer period, and hence the amounts of subcontracting
fees or machinery rental cost incurred may exceed our estimation.
Further, in the case of job extension or delay, we may experience
decrease in revenue derived given that the progress payment to
us is based on works done by us on a monthly basis. There is no
assurance that we would not experience cost overrun and job
extension or delay, which may in turn adversely affect our profit
margin and operating results.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Issue of labour shortage

The construction industry, including the concrete demolition
industry in Hong Kong and Macau has been facing the issue of
labour shortage. The growing demand for construction works
exacerbated the shortage issue and has been pushing up the daily
wage of workers in concrete demolition industry in Hong Kong and
Macau.

If our Group is unable to recruit or retain sufficient workers or fails
to effectively manage our staff costs as a result of shortage of local
labour supply, our business operations and financial performance
may be materially and adversely affected.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
SUBCONTRACTORS AND EMPLOYEES

Customers

We have established long-term relationships with a number of our
customers who are primarily main contractors in the construction
industry. The Group is of the view that a good relationship with
customers, concrete demolition contracting service providers has
an advantage in gaining new and repeated business. Therefore,
our Directors believe that main contractors generally give priority to
subcontractors with whom they are familiar and who have a proven
track record in providing quality concrete demolition works in a
timely manner. We are of the view that our long-term relationships
with a number of our customers are our competitive advantages
that cannot be easily replicated by other concrete demolition works
subcontractors, and have enabled and will continue to enable us
to differentiate ourselves in the industry in Hong Kong and Macau.

Suppliers and Subcontractors

During the Financial Year 2024, our suppliers and subcontractors
mainly consisted of lessors of machinery, suppliers of consumables
and machinery parts, and transportation, courier service providers
and subcontractors of concrete demolition works. We have
established long-term relationship with a number of our suppliers.
We believe our established relationships with these suppliers and
subcontractors have been enabling us to take up jobs of various
scales and service types and fulfill our customers’ requirements.
This could also ensure stable and timely delivery of materials or
services from these suppliers, which in turn shall minimise potential
disruption to our works.

Employees

Our Directors consider that we have maintained good relationship
with our employees in general. We had not experienced any
significant problems with our employees or any disruption to our
operations due to labour disputes nor had we experienced any
difficulties in the recruitment and retention of experienced staff or
skilled personnel during the Financial Year 2024.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN WKk DM

EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT POLICIES

The Group had 86 full-time employees as at 31 December 2024 (31
December 2023: 85 full-time employees). The staff costs, including
Directors’ emoluments, of the Group were approximately HK$43.2
million for the Financial Year 2024 as compared to HK$47.1 million
for the Financial Year 2023.

Employees’ remuneration is commensurate with their job nature,
qualifications and experience. Salaries and wage rates are usually
subjected to an annual review that are based on performance
appraisals and other relevant factors. The Group strongly
encourages internal promotion and a variety of job opportunities
is offered to the existing staff when it is best suited. Remuneration
package is comprised of salary, a performance-based bonus, and
other benefits including training and provident funds.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2024, capital commitment was approximately
HK$0.3 million, which was used in the purchase of property,
plant and equipment (31 December 2023: approximately HK$0.5
million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2024, there was no significant contingent
liabilities for the Group (31 December 2023: Nil).

CHARGE OVER OUR GROUP’S ASSETS

Pledged deposits of approximately HK$15.3 million (31 December
2023: approximately HK$14.8 million) have been pledged to banks
to secure banking facilities.

As at 31 December 2024, certain of the Group’s right-of-use
assets with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$4.6 million (31 December 2023: approximately HK$3.3 million)
was used to secure certain of the lease liabilities of approximately
HK$3.6 million (31 December 2023: approximately HK$2.7 million).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
AFFILIATED COMPANIES

Save as disclosed in this report, there was no significant
investment, material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries and
associated companies by the Company during the Financial Year
2024.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have other

plans for material investments or capital assets as of 31 December
2024.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2024.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 22 November 2016 with its written terms of
reference in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out
in Appendix C1 of the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing
the Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and internal control system of the Group, nominate and
monitor external auditors and to provide advices and comments
to the Board on matters related to corporate governance. The
Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Tam Tak
Kei Raymond, Ms. Zhang Zhang and Mr. An Wen Long, all being
independent non-executive Directors.

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the Financial
Year 2024 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The
Audit Committee is of the opinion that the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the Financial Year 2024 comply
with applicable accounting standards, the Listing Rules and that
adequate disclosures have been made.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company has applied the principles and code provisions
in the CG Code. In the opinion of the Board, the Company has
complied with the CG Code during the Financial Year 2024 except
for the following deviation:

Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. Cheung Shek On is the
Chairman and the chief executive officer of our Company. In view
that Mr. Cheung has been operating and managing our Group
since our establishment, our Board believes that it is in the best
interest of our Group to have Mr. Cheung taking up both roles for
effective management and business development. In addition,
major decisions are made after consultation with the Board and
appropriate Board committees, as well as senior management.
The Board is therefore of the view that there are adequate
safeguards in place to ensure the balance of power and authority
within the Company.

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the
Directors nor the controlling shareholder of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) nor any of their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) that compete or may compete with the business
of the Group and any other conflicts of interest which any such
person has or may have with the Group during the Financial Year
2024.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN WKk DM

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

In relation to the deed of non-competition dated 22 November
2016 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) given by Sino Continent
Holdings Limited, Supreme Voyage Limited, Mr. Cheung Shek On
and Mr. Chan Yuk Sing (each the “Covenantor”) in favour of the
Company and its subsidiaries, each of the Covenantor has made
an annual declaration to the Company that during the Financial
Year 2024, the Covenantor has complied with the terms of the
Deed of Non-Competition given in favour of the Company including
but not limited to:

(i) as long as the Deed of Non-Competition remains effective,
he/it shall not, and shall procure that his/its close associates
(other than any member of the Group), among other things,
not to carry on or be engaged, concerned with or interested
in or otherwise be involved in directly or indirectly, in any
business in competition with or likely to be in competition
with the then existing business activity of any member of
the Group within Hong Kong, Macau and such other parts
of the world where any member of the Group may operate
from time to time, save for the holding of not more than
5% shareholding interests (individually or with his/its close
associates) in any company listed on a recognised stock
exchange and at any time the relevant listed company
shall have at least one shareholder (individually or with his/
its close associates, if applicable) whose shareholding
interests in the relevant listed company is higher than that
of the relevant Covenantor (individually or with his/its close
associates); and

(ii) he/it shall provide all information necessary for the annual
review as is reasonably required by the Group, as a basis
to decide whether to exercise the right of first refusal by the
Company from time to time.

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed
the status of compliance by each of the Covenantors with the
undertakings stipulated in the Deed of Non-Competition and have
confirmed that, as far as the independent non-executive Directors
can ascertain, there is no breach of any of such undertakings.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings set
out in the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing
Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the Directors (the “Code of Conduct”) in respect of the shares of
the Company (the “Share(s)”). The Company has made specific
enquiry to all Directors, and all Directors have confirmed that they
have fully complied with the required standard of dealings set out
in the Code of Conduct during the Financial Year 2024.

CHANGE OF INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes of
information of Directors in the Financial Year 2024 are set out
below:

Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of China Next-Gen Commerce and Supply
Chain Limited (Formerly known as S&T Holdings Limited) (stock
code: 3928) in September 2024.

Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond resigned as an independent non-
executive director of Yunhong Guixin Group Holdings Limited
(Formerly known as MEIGU Technology Holding Group Limited)
(stock code: 8349) in January 2025.

Mr. Chow Chun To resigned as an independent non-executive
Director on 2 December 2024.

Ms. Zhang Zhang was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 2 December 2024.

Mr. Chan Kwok Wing Kelvin resigned as an independent non-
executive Director on 2 January 2025.

Mr. Xu Jiahao was appointed as and resigned as an independent
non-executive Director on 2 January 2025 and 14 March 2025,
respectively.

Mr. An Wen Long was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 14 March 2025.

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board did not recommend payment of final dividend to
shareholders of the Company for the Financial Year 2024.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEB2BEFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHEUNG Shek On (% # %), aged 63, is an executive
Director, chairman and the chief executive officer of our Group.
He joined our Group since its establishment in 1985, and has
been a director of Kingland Concrete Drilling Company Limited
since 16 July 1985 (except for the periods from 16 August 1989
to 30 November 1989 and from 31 March 2005 to 30 June
2005). Mr. Cheung is responsible for the overall management and
administration of our business operations. He is also a director of
Platinum Faith Limited, Alpha Eastern Holdings Limited, Dragon
Team Ventures Limited, Kingever Construction Company Limited
(formerly known as IT Construction Limited) and Kingland (Sino)
Company Limited. Mr. Cheung has more than 30 years of
experience in the concrete demolition industry.

For Mr. Cheung’s interest in the shares within the meaning of Part
XV of Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”), please refer to the
section headed “Report of Directors” in this report.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. TAM Tak Kei Raymond (& #), aged 61, has joined our
Group as an independent non-executive Director since May 2020.
He is responsible for providing independent judgment on our
strategy, performance, resources and standard of conduct.

Mr. Tam obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accounting with
Computing from University of Kent at Canterbury, the United
Kingdom in July 1985. He has been a member of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales since August 1990
and an associate of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants since
January 1995.

Mr. Tam acted as the financial controller at international law firms
for 9 years and has over 30 years of professional accounting
experience and is currently the company secretary of Tian Lun
Gas Holdings Limited (stock code: 1600). Mr. Tam also acted as
the company secretary of Branding China Group Limited (currently
known as OSL Group Limited) (stock code: 863) during the period
from April 2012 to April 2018, and was an independent non-
executive director of Li Bao Ge Group Limited (currently known
Kafelaku Coffee Holding Limited) (stock code: 1869) during the
period from June 2016 to February 2020. The shares of the
abovementioned three companies are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-executive
director of Green Economy Development Limited (Formerly known
as Vision Fame International Holding Limited) (stock code: 1315)
and Yunhong Guixin Group Holdings Limited (Formerly known as
MEIGU Technology Holding Group Limited) (stock code: 8349)
during the period from December 2011 to February 2023 and from
December 2016 to January 2025, respectively.

Mr. Tam has been as an independent non-executive director of
China Next-Gen Commerce and Supply Chain Limited (formerly
known as S&T Holdings Limited) (stock code: 3928) since
September 2024, the issued shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. He has been an independent non-
executive director of CNQC International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1240) since 11 September 2012, the issued shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Ms. Zhang Zhang (3R %), aged 37, has joined our Group as an
independent non-executive Director since December 2024. She is
responsible for providing independent judgment on our strategy,
performance, resources and standard of conduct.

Ms, Zhang is experienced in media and entertainment industry.
Since August 2024, Ms. Zhang has been the chief marketing
officer of Grande Capital Limited, a licensed corporation under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance to engage in type 1 (dealing in
securities) and type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated
activities. From November 2014 to December 2021, Ms. Zhang
served as a vice president of Starlight Culture Entertainment Group
Limited (currently known as Smart Digital Technology Group
Limited), the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange
(Stock code: 1159), responsible for business development,
financing and risk control of projects, as well as maintaining
investor relations. Ms. Zhang was awarded a bachelor degree in
finance from the Beijing Technology and Business University (1t
R I AE), and a master degree in business administration
from St. John’s University, New York, in July 2009 and September
2012, respectively.

Mr. An Wen Long (% X 3€), aged 41, has joined our Group as
an independent non-executive Director since December 2024. He
is responsible for providing independent judgment on our strategy,
performance, resources and standard of conduct.

Mr. An has accumulated over 17 years of experience in finance
and investment industry. Since March 2016, Mr. An has been
serving Mutualwell Incorporated, a company engaging in asset
management, private equity investment and business consultancy,
with his current position as the managing director of North
America. From June 2010 to October 2015, Mr. An worked for
Pacific Construction Group Company Limited as a vice general
manager of the financial investment department. He also worked
for Vanpeople Network Ltd. as a director of investment department
from February 2008 to September 2011. Since December 2023,
Mr. An has been an independent non-executive director of King’s
Stone Holdings Group Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1943). Mr. An obtained
a bachelor’s degree in business administration from The Beedie
School of Business at the Simon Fraser University in December
2006.

Senior Management

Mr. MAK Banna (Z & ¥), aged 61, is the chief technical officer
of our Group principally responsible for the overall operation of
our concrete demolition business including tendering and work
processing, quality control and work safety supervision. Mr. Mak
first joined our Group in July 1996 as a project manager and was
subsequently promoted to the current position in December 2012.
Mr. Mak is also a director of Kingland (Sino) Company Limited and
Kingland Concrete Driling Company Limited.

Mr. Mak has over 30 years of experience in the construction
industry. Prior to joining our Group, he was employed, among
others, by (i) Hsin Chong Construction Co., Ltd. from July 1985 to
May 1988 with his last position as a contract coordinator; and (i)
Sun Fook Kong Construction Limited after he resigned from Hsin
Chong Construction Co., Ltd. and up to February 1995 with his
last position as a senior project manager.
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EERSREEB2BEFE

Mr. Mak obtained a diploma in Building Studies from the Technical
Education and Industrial Training Department Hong Kong in July
1982. He received a higher diploma in Building Technology and
Management and an associateship in Building Technology and
Management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently known
as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in November 1984
and November 1985 respectively. He completed a course on
Construction Safety conducted by the Industrial Safety Training
Centre of the Labour Department, Hong Kong in November
1985. He also obtained a diploma in Construction Management
from the Construction Industry Training Authority in October
1991. He completed the Lead Assessor Examination organised
by BSI Quality Assurance in October 1992 and a master degree
in Construction Management from the City University of Hong
Kong in November 2001. He was awarded the certificate of Metal
Scaffold Erecting and Dismantling Supervision Training Course
from the Construction Industry Training Authority (currently known
as the Construction Industry Training Board) in May 2004, and
the certificate of an Introductory Course on Conservation of Built
Heritage from the Construction Industry Council Training Academy
in June 2008.

Mr. Mak has been a member of the Chartered Institute of Building
since May 1995 and a member of the Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers since June 1995. He was registered as a Registered
Professional Engineer in September 1998.

Mr. Chen Yeung Tak (FR{Jf&) , aged 40, has joined our Group
as a financial controller and company secretary since March 2015.
He was an executive Director from 20 May 2020 to 24 June 2022.
He is also a director of Kingland (Sino) Company Limited.

Mr. Chen has over 15 years of experience in auditing, accounting
and financial management, treasury, internal control, corporate
governance and company secretarial matters. He graduated from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Arts in
Accountancy in December 2006. He has been a member and a
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“CPA”"). He is also a CPA (Practising) registered in the Accounting
and Financial Reporting Council.

Mr. Chen has worked in international accounting firms and
listed companies as managerial positions. From January 2018
to February 2025, he served as an independent non-executive
director of Gain Plus Holdings limited, the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
9900). He is also a company secretary of Hin Sang Group
(International) Holdings Co. Limited, the shares of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6893).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Chen is an independent non-executive director of the following
companies respectively: DT Capital Limited, the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 356); Prosperity
Group International Limited (formerly known as Kingbo Strike
Limited), the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1421); and WEIli Holdings Limited, the shares of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2372). He
also has an appointment of an independent director of Onion
Global Limited, a company formerly listed on New York Stock
Exchange (stock code: NYSE: OG) and currently listed on U.S.
OTC Market (stock code: OGBLY: OG).

Mr. YIP Wai Man (% {2 ), aged 55, has joined our Group
as a sales manager since January 1995. Mr. Yip is principally
responsible for the overall operation of our marketing and customer
relationship activities, and procurement of plant and machinery.

Mr. Yip has over 30 years of experience in the construction
industry. Prior to joining our Group, he was employed, among
others, by (i) Chen Hsong Foundry Co., Ltd. From August 1990
to September 1990 as a summer engineer trainee; (i) Coleman
Engineering Co (Hong Kong) Ltd from October 1991 to July 1993
as a sales engineer; and (i) Mason S. & E. Co. Ltd. from October
1994 to December 1995 as a sales executive.

Mr. Yip obtained a higher diploma in Mechanical Engineering from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) in November 1991. He was awarded the
certificate of completion of Metal Scaffold Erecting and Dismantling
Supervision Training Course by the Construction Industry Training
Authority in May 2004. He has also obtained the Construction
Industry Safety Training Certificate from the Construction Industry
Council in May 2013 and the Certificate of Certified Worker from
the Hong Kong Human Resources Ltd. in January 2014.

Ms. TSU Fung Ling (#Rl8), aged 58, first joined our Group as
an administrative manager in April 1994 and left in January 2005.
She has rejoined our Group as consultant from September 2014
to November 2014 and became the administrative manager of our
Group since December 2014. Ms. Tsu is principally responsible for
the overall administration of our business operations.

Prior to joining us, Ms. Tsu was employed, among others, by (i)
Argos Engineering & Heavy Industries Co., Ltd. from April 1988 to
March 1993 as a senior accounts clerk; and (i) the Dynasty Club
Limited from April 1993 to April 1994 as a supervisor.

Ms. Tsu obtained the certificates of Higher Accounting and Third
Level Cost Accounting from the London Chamber of Commerce
and Industry Examinations Board in 1986 and 1990 respectively.

Mr. TAI Cheuk Fung (E = %), aged 42, joined our Group as a
foreman since February 2012. He is mainly responsible for overall
site operation.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Tai was employed, among others,
by Chong Shing Construction & Engineering Co., Ltd. as site
foreman from August 2008 to February 2012. Mr. Tai obtained
a diploma in Civil Engineering and a higher diploma in Civil
Engineering from the Vocational Training Council in July 2003 and
July 2010 respectively. He also completed a Construction Safety
Supervisor Course held by the Construction Industry Training
Authority (currently known as the Construction Industry Training
Board) in July 2006.
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Corporate Governance Report
EERRE

The Board is pleased to present hereby the corporate governance
report of the Company for the Financial Year 2024.

The Directors and the management of the Group recognise the
importance of sound corporate governance to the long term
and continuing success of the Group. Therefore, the Board is
committed to upholding good corporate standards and procedures
for the best interest of the Shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The CG Code set out the principles of good corporate
governance, code provisions and recommended best practices.
Issuers are expected to comply with the code provisions or devise
their own code on corporate governance on the terms they
consider appropriate provided that considered reasons are given.
Throughout the Financial Year 2024, the Company had complied
with the applicable code provisions of the CG Code with the
exception of the deviation from code provision C.2.1 as explained
below:

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code requires that the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
not performed by the same individual. In view that Mr. Cheung
Shek On has been operating and managing our Group since our
establishment in 1985, our Board believes that it is in the best
interest of our Group to have Mr. Cheung taking up both roles for
effective management and business development. Accordingly,
our Company has not segregated the roles of its chairman and
chief executive officer as required by code provision C.2.1 of the
CG Code.

BUSINESS STRATEGIES AND CORPORATE CULTURE

The Board has established the Company’s mission and values
to integrate environmental protection, social responsibility and
sustainable growth in business strategies to provide environmental
friendly, high efficiency and safe professional services to clients.

A healthy corporate culture across the Group is vital for the
Company to achieve its mission and value. It is the Board’s role to
foster the Group’s culture with integrity and accountability to guide
the behaviours of its employees, and ensure that the Company’s
mission, values and business strategies are aligned to it.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The key responsibilities of the Board include formulation of the
Group’s overall strategies, the setting of management targets and
supervision of management performance. The management is
delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for
the management and administration of the Group. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the board
committees of the Company (the “Board Committees”). Further
details of the Board Committees are set out in this report.
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Composition of the Board

Up to the date of this report, the Board comprises four Directors,
including one executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors (“INEDs”). In particular, the composition of the
Board is set out as follow:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Shek On (Chief Executive Officer, Chairman of the
Board and Compliance Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond
Ms. Zhang Zhang (appointed on 2 December 2024)
Mr. An Wen Long (appointed on 14 March 2024)

In compliance with Rule LR3.09D of the Listing Rules which took
effect on 31 December 2023, Ms. Zhang Zhang (“Ms. Zhang”) and
Mr. An Wen Long (“Mr. An”), who were appointed as Directors
on 2 December 2024 and 14 March 2025, respectively, obtained
the legal advices referred to in Rule 3.09D on 2 December 2024
and 14 March 2025, respectively. Each of Ms. Zhang and Mr. An
confirmed that she/he understood her/his obligations as a Director.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

In compliance with rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the Board consisted of three INEDs during the Financial
Year 2024, with at least one INED possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. During the Financial Year 2024 and as
of the date of this report, the number of INEDs represents more
than one-third of the Board as required under the Listing Rules.
As such, there is a strong independent element in the Board to
provide independent judgement.

FUNCTIONS OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board supervises the management of the business and
affairs of the Company and ensures that it is managed in the
best interests of the Shareholders as a whole while taking into
account the interest of other stakeholders. The Board is primarily
responsible for formulating the business strategy, reviewing and
monitoring the business performance of the Group, approving
the financial statements and annual budgets as well as directing
and supervising the management of the Company. Execution
of operational matters and the powers thereof are delegated to
the management by the Board with clear directions. The Board
is regularly provided with management update report to give a
balanced and understandable assessment of the performance,
position, recent development and prospect of the Group in
sufficient details.

The Board has reviewed and discussed the corporate governance
policy of the Group and is satisfied with the effectiveness of the
corporate governance policy.

With the various experience of both the executive Directors and
the INEDs and in view of the nature of the Group’s business, the
Board considered that the Directors have a balance of skills and
experience for the business of the Group.
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TERMS OF APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The Company has signed a letter of appointment with each of the
INEDs for a term of three years, which may be terminated earlier
by no less than one month written notice served by either party on
the other.

Pursuant to article 108(a) of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), one-third of the Directors shall retire
from office by rotation at each annual general meeting and every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every 3 years. However, a retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election.

Specific enquiry has been made by the Company to each of the
INEDs to confirm their independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company has received positive confirmations
from all three INEDs. Based on the confirmations received, the
Company considers all the INEDs to be independent under the
Listing Rules.

RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN THE BOARD

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in
the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this report.

BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well
as the operation and financial performance of our Group. Directors
may participate either in person or through electronic means of
communications.

During the Financial Year 2024, the Board had held four meetings
and one annual general meeting. The attendance of the respective
Directors at the Board meetings and general meetings are set out
below:
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Attendance/
Attendance/ Numbers of
Numbers of Board general meeting
meetings during during the
the Financial Financial
Year 2024 Year 2024
R-ZBZWMEF R—ZB-_WF
MHBEER BBEER
HEEBRE HEEBRE,
EE - E PN BRAEXRHE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Cheung Shek On (Chairman) KPR L (FE) 4/4 11
Independent Non-Executive Directors BAFHITES
Mr. Chow Chun To (resigned on 2 December 2024) %B:ﬁ?%% & (E/\\\:{%: uskes 2/2 11
—AZHEME
Mr. Chan Kwok Wing Kelvin (resigned on 2 January 2025) R [B 458 % 4 (E}:‘:);f:ﬁi 4/4 1/1
—AZ-HEE
Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond BT A 4/4 11
Ms. Zhang Zhang (appointed on 2 December 2024) KEZT(RZZT_WF 2/2 N/A i@ A
+- B HEZEME)
Mr. An Wen Long (appointed on 14 March 2025) TXREE(RZT_RHF N/A 738 F N/A i@ A
—ATHBEEERT)
Mr. Xu Jiahao (appointed on 2 January 2025 and TREREE(R_TRF— N/A 738 N/A 738

resigned on 14 March 2025)
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CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings
set out in the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3 of the
Listing Rules as the Code of Conduct. After specific enquiries by
the Company, all Directors have confirmed that they have fully
complied with the required standard of dealings set out in the
Code of Conduct during the Financial Year 2024.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

The Group acknowledges the importance of adequate and ample
continuing professional development for the Directors for a sound
and effective internal control system and corporate governance.
In this regard, the Group has always encouraged our Directors
to attend relevant training courses to receive the latest news and
knowledge regarding corporate governance.

During the Financial Year 2024, each Director had participated
in continuous professional development by attending seminars/
workshops or by reading materials to update and refresh his skill
and knowledge necessary for the performance of his duty. All
Directors have also provided the Company a record of the training
they received. The Company will, if necessary, provide timely and
regular trainings to the Directors to ensure that they keep abreast
with the current requirements under the Listing Rules.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established a number of functional committees
in compliance with the relevant Listing Rules and to assist the
Board to discharge its duties. Currently, three committees have
been established, i.e. the Audit Committee, the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”). The functions and
responsibilities of these committees have been set out in the
relevant terms of reference which are of no less stringent than that
stated in the CG Code. The relevant terms of reference of each
of the three committees can be found on the Company’s website
(www.kinglandgroup.com.hk). All committees have been provided
with sufficient resources and support from the Group to discharge
their duties.

Audit Committee

We have established the Audit Committee pursuant to a resolution
of our Directors passed on 22 November 2016 and with the written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary
duties of our Audit Committee are, among other things, (i) to make
recommendations to our Board on the appointment and removal of
external auditors; (ii) to review the financial statements and material
advice in respect of financial reporting process of our Group; (iii)
to oversee the internal control systems of our Group; and (iv) to
oversee the corporate governance procedures and practices. The
Audit Committee currently consists of all three INEDs, namely Mr.
Tam Tak Kei Raymond, Ms. Zhang Zhang and Mr. An Wen Long.
Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond who has the appropriate accounting
and financial related management expertise, is the chairman of the
Audit Committee.
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During the Financial Year 2024, the Audit Committee had reviewed
the Group’s unaudited interim results for the six months ended 30
June 2024 and discussed internal controls and financial reporting
matters. The Audit Committee had also reviewed this report, and
confirmed that this report complies with the applicable standard,
the Listing Rules, and other applicable legal requirements and that
adequate disclosures have been made. There is no disagreement
between the Directors and the Audit Committee regarding the
selection and appointment of the external auditors.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Board is of the view that
the Audit Committee has properly discharged its duties and
responsibilities during the Financial Year 2024 and up to the date
of this report.

RIZZZMFHBRFEN EREZEGEEHNAEEHE-Z
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During the Financial Year 2024, the Audit Committee had held =l 1t ﬁﬁkif W BZLEEGERITZAGH B
three meetings. The attendance records of the members of the ZEERERN _ZE_NFHWBRFEANZ HEREBAMNAT
Audit Committee during the Financial Year 2024 are summarised
below:
Attendance/Number of meetings
during the Financial Year 2024
R-ZB-NFHERFER
HESERE SEAH
Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond (Chairman) EEME A () 3/3
Mr. Chow Chun To (resigned on 2 December 2024) %B RELEE(R-_ZE_NF 2/2
TZAZHEE)
Mr. Chan Kwok Wing Kelvin (resigned on 2 January 2025) PREIER e (MR 3/3
—AZBEIT)
Ms. Zhang Zhang (appointed on 2 December 2024) REZT(RZTZMF 1/1
+=ZA=H ﬁéiE)
Mr. An Wen Long (appointed on 14 March 2025) BNREEE(RZZE_RF N/A 36
“A+mBEEZRT)
Mr. Xu Jiahao (appointed on 2 January 2025 and FREEER-_ZE-_AF—A N/A i@ A

resigned on 14 March 2025)

“AEZAYR T _REF
= A+ M HEET)

Remuneration Committee

We have established the Remuneration Committee pursuant to a
resolution of our Directors passed on 22 November 2016 and with
the written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.
The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are, among
other things, (i) to review and make recommendations to our Board
on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all
Directors and senior management of our Group; (i) to review and
approve other remuneration-related matters, including benefits-in-
kind and other compensation payable to our Directors and senior
management; and (i) to review and approve performance-based
remuneration and to establish a formal and transparent procedure
for developing policy in relation to remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee currently consists of an executive Director, namely
Mr. Cheung Shek On, and two INEDs, namely Mr. Tam Tak Kei
Raymond and Ms. Zhang Zhang. Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond is
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration
Committee has reviewed the remuneration packages and
emoluments of Directors and senior management and considered
that they are fair and reasonable during the Financial Year 2024.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Board is of the view that the
Remuneration Committee has properly discharged its duties and
responsibilities during the Financial Year 2024 and up to the date
of this report.
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During the Financial Year 2024, the Remuneration Committee had
held one meeting. The attendance records of the members of the
Remuneration Committee are summarised below:
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MEMBFEERN - FHBE

- REEERTREH - FM
ZEGKRBZHFERERRNT

Attendance/Number of meeting
during the Financial Year 2024
REZB-_NFHRFER

HESEAE SRRH
Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond (Chairman) EERE A (EE) 11
Mr. Cheung Shek On R R TEE 11
Mr. Chow Chun To (resigned on 2 December 2024) #ikRERE (RS _WE+ = A —HEH1T) 1/1
Ms. Zhang Zhang (appointed on 2 December 2024) RE 4L+ (E’\f S_NFE+_A-—HEZT) N/A 7~ F3

Remuneration of Directors and senior management

Our Directors and senior management receive compensation
in the form of salaries, allowances, bonuses and other benefits-
in-kind, including our contribution to the pension scheme. The
Remuneration Committee determines the salaries of our Directors
based on each Director’s qualification, position and seniority.

Nomination Committee

We have established the Nomination Committee pursuant to a
resolution of our Directors passed on 22 November 2016 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are, among
other things, (i) to review the structure, size and composition of
our Board on a regular basis; (i) to identify individuals suitably
qualified to become Board members and to select or make
recommendations to our Board on the selection of individuals for
nomination of directorships of the Company; (iii) to assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors; and (iv) to
make recommendations to our Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors. The Nomination
Committee currently consists of one executive Director, namely
Mr. Cheung Shek On, and two INEDs, namely Ms. Zhang Zhang
and Mr. An Wen Long. Mr. Cheung Shek On is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

During the Financial Year 2024, the Nomination Committee had
held one meeting. The attendance records of the members of the
Nomination Committee are summarised below:
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EE)EMBBIFATER (AIREL T RREELL)AMK -
RHREERRLEREGEE -

R-E_MEPRFERN REZEGCDRT-REHE - RE
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Attendance/

Number of meeting during
the Financial Year 2024
RIB-_NEVBREER

HESERE SEAY

Mr. Cheung Shek On (Chairman) RIGL KL (FEE) 11

Mr. Chow Chun To (resigned on 2 December 2024) FIRBEE(R-_ZT-_WF 11
+=A=H&T)

Mr. Chan Kwok Wing Kelvin (resigned on 2 January 2025)  FREI 4 %8 4 (E’{\f) T_RHEF 1/1
—AZBEI{TE

Ms. Zhang Zhang (appointed on 2 December 2024) REZT(RZT_MEF N/A 738 FR
+=A=H Z%?Fc)

Mr. An Wen Long (appointed on 14 March 2025) ZXREE(RZZT_REF N/A 7~ FA
= )EI 1A ERT)

Mr. Xu Jiahao (appointed on 2 January 2025 and REE(R-ZZE-_HAF—HF=H N/A 7 i F3

resigned on 14 March 2025)

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the nomination procedures for selecting
candidates for election as Directors. Such policy is adopted by the
Board and managed by the Nomination Committee.
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The Nomination Committee may put forward candidates who are
not nominated by Board members. The factors which would be
used as reference by the Nomination Committee in assessing
the suitability of a proposed candidate for Director include, inter
alia, character and integrity, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy, wilingness to devote adequate
time to discharge duties as Board member and other directorships
and significant commitments, diversity of the Board, and such
other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s business. The
Nomination Committee shall make recommendations for the
Board’s consideration and approval.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out
the approach to achieve a sustainable and balanced development
of the Company and also to enhance the quality of performance
of the Company. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, industry experience, technical and professional skills
and/or qualifications, knowledge, length of services and time to be
devoted as a Director. The Company will also take into account
factors relating to its own business model and specific needs from
time to time.

The Company currently has three male Directors and one female
Director. Following the appointment of Ms. Zhang Zhang as an
independent non-executive Director on 2 December 2024, the
Company has complied with the requirement under Rule 13.92
of the Listing Rules regarding gender diversity of the Board. The
Board also considers that, taking into account the business model
and specific needs of the Company, the gender diversity of the
Board is satisfactory.

WORKFORCE DIVERSITY

The gender ratio (male to female) in the workforce (including
senior management) for Reporting Period is 69:17. As general
demolition works involve physical labour, a majority workforce is
normally composed of male employees. However, the Group has
committed itself to striking a balance between male and female
employees in its working environment, and to providing equal
opportunities to employees of different genders. For further details
of gender ratio, please refer to the disclosure in the Environmental,
Social and Governance report.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year
2024 to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the results and cash flows for that year. The Directors
continue to adopt appropriate accounting policies and apply them
consistently, make judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair
and reasonable and prepare the financial statements on a going
concern basis. The responsibilities of the external auditors about
their financial reporting are set out in the independent auditors’
report attached to the Company’s financial statements for the
Financial Year 2024 set out in this report.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the Financial Year 2023, the Group engaged HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB”) as the Group’s external auditors to
conduct audit of the financial results of the Group for the Financial
Year 2024 with the remuneration payable of HK$690,000.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the establishment, maintenance
and review of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The Board must ensure that the Company establishes
and maintains effective risk management and internal control
systems to meet the objectives and safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and the assets of the Company.

The Board oversees the Group’s overall risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. At the same time, the
Group endeavors to identify risks, control impact of the identified
risks and facilitate implementation of coordinated mitigating
measures. The risk management and internal control systems are
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (COSO) — Integrated Framework 2013
principles. They are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failures in order to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Group has established a risk management policy which sets
out the process of identification, evaluation and management of
the principal risks affecting the business.

1. Each division is responsible for identifying and assessing
principal risks within its divisions (including ESG risks) on a
quarterly basis and establishing mitigation plans to manage
the risks identified.

2. The management is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
risk management and internal control activities, attending
quarterly meetings with each division to ensure principal
risks are properly managed, and new or changing risks are
identified and documented.

3. The Board is responsible for reviewing and approving the
effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems.

The risk management framework, coupled with our internal
controls, ensures the risk associated with our different business
units are effectively controlled in line with the Group’s risk appetite.

The Group does not have an internal audit department. The
Group, yet has conducted an annual review on whether there is a
need for an internal audit department. Given the Group’s relatively
simple corporate and operation structure, as opposed to diverting
resources to establish a separate internal audit department,
the Board, as supported by the Audit Committee, is directly
responsible for risk management and internal control systems of
the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.
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The Group engaged an external consultant, Morton Professional
Services Limited, for internal control to conduct review on the
internal control system of the Group during the Financial Year
2024. The review covers certain procedures on the provision of
concrete demolition services in Hong Kong and Macau, and makes
recommendations for improving and strengthening the internal
control system. No significant area of concemn that may affect the
financial, operational, compliance, control and risk management of
the Group has been identified.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The
Board has the overall responsibility to maintain the adequacies of
resources, staff qualifications and experience training programs
and budget of accounting and financial reporting function as well
as those relating to our ESG performance and reporting. The
Board concluded that the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems were in place and effective.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside information,
the Group has adopted a policy on disclosure of inside information
with the aim to ensure the insiders are abiding by the confidentiality
requirement and are fulfilling the disclosure obligation of the inside
information.

The Group has adopted a whistleblowing policy to help mitigate
legal, financial, operational and reputational risk. This policy aims
to encourage our people and third parties to come forward and
report suspected wrongdoing and to provide necessary guidance
and assurance to anyone who reports suspected wrongdoing.
All complaints under the Whistleblowing Policy are properly
investigated and addressed to ensure that prompt remedial action
is taken where appropriate. Any reporting under this policy can
be done confidentially through multiple channels that allow for
anonymous reporting.

We require compliance with all applicable anti-bribery and
corruption laws in all markets and jurisdictions in which we operate.
We set a high standard anti-bribery and corruption policy, which
also focuses on the spirit of relevant laws and regulations to help
demonstrate our commitment to ethical behaviours and conduct
as part of our environmental, social and corporate governance.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group complies with requirements of SFO and the Listing
Rules. The Group discloses inside information to the public as
soon as reasonably practicable unless the information falls within
any of the Safe Harbours as provided in the SFO. Before the
information is fully disclosed to the public, the Group ensures the
information is kept strictly confidential. If the Group believes that
the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained or
that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group would
immediately disclose the information to the public. The Group is
committed to ensure that information contained in announcements
are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or false or
misleading through the omission of a material fact in view of
presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which requires
equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chen Yeung Tak (“Mr. Chen”) was appointed by the Board as
the company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”)
since November 2016. The biographical details of Mr. Chen
are set out under the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management”. The primary duties of the
Company Secretary include, but are not limited to, the following:
(i) to ensure the Board procedures are followed and that the
activities of the Board are carried out efficiently and effectively; (ii)
to assist the chairman to prepare agendas and Board papers for
meetings and disseminate such documents to the Directors and
Board committees in a timely manner; (iii) to timely disseminate
announcements and information relating to the Group; and (iv)
to maintain formal minutes of the Board meetings and other
Board Committees meetings. During the Financial Year 2024, the
Company Secretary had confirmed that he had taken no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training in accordance with rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the Shareholders and the Board.
An annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each
year and at the place as may be determined by the Board. Each
general meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be
called an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”).

Procedures and right for Shareholders to convene EGM

The following procedures for Shareholders to convene an EGM
are subject to the Articles (as amended from time to time), and the
applicable legislation and regulation, in particular the Listing Rules
(as amended from time to time):

(@) Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, any one or more
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the Company Secretary, to require an EGM to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition;

(b)  The written requisition must state the purposes of the
meeting, signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) and deposit
it to the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business at Flat B, G/F, Fu Hop Factory
Building, 209 and 211 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, and such may consist of several documents in
like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists;
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(c)  The requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their shareholding,
the reason(s) to convene an EGM and the details of the
business(es) proposed to be transacted in the EGM, and
must be signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned
together with a deposit of a sum of money reasonable
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in serving
the notice of the resolution and circulating the statement
submitted by the Shareholders concerned in accordance
with the statutory requirements to all the registered
Shareholders;

(d)  The requisition will be verified with Hong Kong branch
share registrar and transfer office of the Company and
upon their confirmation that the requisition is proper and in
order, the Board will convene an EGM by serving sufficient
notice in accordance with the requirements under the
Articles to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary,
if the requisition has been verified as not in order or the
Shareholders concerned have failed to deposit sufficient
money to meet the Company’s expenses for the said
purposes, the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, the Board will not
call for an EGM; and

(e) If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the Eligible Shareholder(s) himself/
herself/themselves may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the Eligible Shareholder(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
the Eligible Shareholder(s) by the Company.

Right to put enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company. Shareholders may
send their enquiries or requests in respect of their rights to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Flat B, G/F,
Fu Hop Factory Building, 209 and 211 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at
Shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Companies Law
(Revised) of Cayman Islands. However, pursuant to the Articles,
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may by means of
requisition convene an EGM following the procedures set out
above.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication
channels between itself and its Shareholders, investors and other
stakeholders. These include the annual general meeting, the
annual report, interim report and quarterly reports (if any), notices,
announcements and circulars that are available on Company’s
website at www.kinglandgroup.com.hk.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board endeavors to strike a balance between the interests
of the Shareholder and prudent capital management with a
sustainable dividend policy. In proposing any dividend payout, the
Board shall take into account, inter alia:

1. the actual and expected financial performance of the Group;

2. retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the other members of the Group;

3. economic conditions and other internal or external factors
that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Group;

4. business strategies of the Group, including future cash
commitments and investment needs to sustain the long-
term growth aspect of the business;

58 the current and future operations, liquidity position and
capital requirements of the Group;

6. statutory and regulatory restrictions; and
7. other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Board will review the dividend policy as appropriate from time
to time.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the Company’s constitutional documents
during Financial Year 2024 and up to the date of this report. The
Articles is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRI - HERRERE

PREAMBLE

Kingland Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), together with
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), is delighted
to present the Environmental, Social, and Governance (“ESG”)
Report, which illustrates and highlights our efforts and performance
in achieving sustainable development in both environmental and
social aspects.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has taken
overall responsibility for developing the Group’s ESG strategy and
ensuring that adequate and effective ESG-related risk management
and internal controls are in place, with the intention of enabling
the Group to operate its business in a responsible and sustainable
manner. We are committed to pursuing excellence in construction
methods with the goal of sustainable development and enhancing
the quality of life for the public. While developing our goals, we
firmly adhere to principles of sound corporate governance and
carefully consider our activities’ influence on the environment and
society. Corporate social responsibilities are also integrated into
the Group’s business strategy and management approach.

This ESG report has been reviewed and approved by the Board
of Directors on 25 March 2025. For information on our corporate
governance, please refer to the “Corporate Governance Report”
on pages 18 to 29 of the 2024 Annual Report.

REPORTING SCOPE AND STANDARDS

Prepared in accordance with the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Code” (‘ESG Code”) (revised and renamed
from the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
with effect from 1 January 2025) as set out in Appendix C2 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, this report provides an annual update of
the Group’s ESG performance for the period from 1 January 2024
to 31 December 2024 (the “Reporting Period”), which covers
our operations in Hong Kong and Macau during the Reporting
Period. Unless otherwise specified, the scope of the ESG Report is
consistent with that of our ESG report published last year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

EXPLANATIONS ON DATA

The information in this Report is derived from the Group’s
documents obtained and statistical data, as well as the integration
and summary of monitoring, management, and operational
information provided by subsidiaries of the Group. The Board
is responsible for the reliability, accuracy, objectiveness and
completeness of the information. The Group undertakes that
there is no false record or misleading statement and assumes
responsibility for the authenticity, accuracy, and completeness of
its content.

RIS - HERREHRE

RERE

RiEOEFRE AN EBESH M MG BE  URAEE
EMBARRHNER BEERELEHELAREE -EFg
HERWAEME  ERE FRUERTBEEEER - AREAR
ABETFEEMNERCHLRGERL  THATEEN -
EHEEMTEERE -

Financial data in the Report are extracted from the 2024 Annual WEPHMEHERESEE S _NEER - RREUBTAY
Report. Hong Kong dollar is used in the Report as its functional B - MEHANEBRORFIR NI EMRAFTES L -
currency. The intensity disclosed for the Reporting Period was
calculated by dividing the following indicators:
2024

—E-mE
Indicators B
Number of projects HEB #HE 81
Number of employees EEB#H 86

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

During the compilation of this Report, the Group has adopted the
reporting principles outlined in the aforementioned ESG Code, as
follows:

o Materiality: The Group has conducted materiality
assessments to identify its material ESG issues to the
business. The materiality of the issues has been reviewed
and confirmed by the Board. For further details, please refer
to the sections “ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS”
and “MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT.”

. Quantitative: The notes have been updated with additional
information about the criteria and methods used to compute
the data for the key performance indicators (“‘KPIs”) and the
relevant assumptions.

. Consistency: To enable meaningful comparisons of
relevant data over time, the Group, unless otherwise
indicated, employs consistent reporting standards and
methodology. The Group will provide an explanation of the
related statistics if there are any changes to the reporting
scope or calculation methodology that could impact how
the reports compare to earlier ones.

A complete index is appended in the at the end of this report
section for reading the Report in accordance with the ESG Code.

HBERAY
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BRI - HERRERE

ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board acknowledges the overall responsibility for the Group’s
ESG strategies and reporting and for evaluating and determining
the Group’s ESG-related risks. ESG performance is measured,
reviewed, and reported to the management regularly for continuous
improvement. The Group integrates the ESG governance into
various business segments and its daily management system,
monitors the potential environmental and social impacts of our
business development and daily operations in a timely manner.

During annual meetings, the Board thoroughly examines ESG
topics and evaluates performance. Additionally, the Board
oversees risk management, including ESG-related risks, by
regularly conducting assessments based on national laws,
regulations, standards, and the Group’s operations. Relevant
measures are implemented to prevent and minimize risks that
could impede the achievement of business objectives.

The Group will continue to improve its sustainability-related
management, the Board constantly enhances the supervision
over and participation of the Group’s ESG governance, sets ESG-
related targets and conducts regular reviews on the progress of
achieving the targets.

ASSESSMENT AND FEEDBACK TO THE ESG REPORT

You can access to the electronic version of the report from the
following websites: www.hkexnews.hk and www.kinglandgroup.
com.hk. The Group attaches great importance to valuable opinions
from all stakeholders, we welcome feedback from stakeholders
on our ESG practices and disclosures. If you are in any doubt or
have any opinion or recommendation about the content or form of
reporting of the Report, you are welcome to contact the Group by
the following means:

Address: Flat B, G/F. Fu Hop Factory Building, 209 and 211 Wai
Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2798 9202

Fax: (852) 2798 9187
Email: info@kingland.com.hk
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group believes that gaining a deeper comprehension of the
requirements, goals, and priorities of its stakeholders would help
it achieve sustainable development in the social, environmental,
and economic spheres. To enhance its operations and processes,
the Group actively engages with its stakeholders and solicits their
feedback through a variety of communication channels. This allows
the Group to comprehend and resolve their problems. The modes
of communication used by each stakeholder and the Group are
shown in the following table.

Stakeholder Engagement Table

RIS - HERREHRE

FzEEAE 28R

AEBEBE ERATHRESNEHEINER BEREE
REEEPRERLE RERKERIAERIHELER - K
SEEANZABESERER UERXBEERRBEERER
HEER AMELEEMRE - D BB EAEET R
AR - TRIVREFHNEBES RAKEERBET N

FEERA B EYE

Stakeholder Groups Specific Stakeholder Communication Channel
F %5 48 B8 75 48 Bl HENBZEBS BERE
Investors o Shareholders ° Corporate website
o Potential investors o Annual and interim financial report
° Annual general meetings
° Announcements and disclosure of listed
information
REE . AR5 o 1@
. BEREE . FERPHIBHRE
o BRBERG
o ETEMNREREE
Employees o Senior management o Direct communication
° Staff ° Independent focus groups and interviews
. Direct workers . Training and seminars
o Potential recruits o Regular performance assessment
° Corporate social responsibility and
volunteering activities
=] . BREEE o HEZER
. BT o B HIENMEREH
J BEETA o 5 K o e
J BERES o TE BRI AT AL
o rEAGEEREREFD
Customers ° Main-contractors o Site visit
° Ultimate users o Customer assessment
o Customer service
®F J BARER . i 2 4R 52
. BHEAP . BPEHE
. TP RS
Suppliers/Contractors ° Materials suppliers o Suppliers assessment
° Sub-contractors o Quality and delivery review
o Service providers o Daily work review
. Site inspection
#HERREH o MEHERER . HrEmET
. DERE . B R RAZMRE
. RIS ER . BHIKES
. AR
Community o National and local community o Industry events
organizations . Volunteering activities
HE o 2B & & it [ 4R A J TEEH
o EFEEED
Government o National and local governments o Written correspondence
o Regulators o Statutory reports and general disclosures
BUS o 2B & 8 H BT J B
o EEKE . EEME R —MBEEER

The Group aims to collaborate with its stakeholders to improve
its ESG performance and create greater value for the wider
community on a continuous basis.

AEE B ERENGSAED A EARITERE & RaRRR -
TERE EZNHRAEE RNEE -

SBREEEZERARAR —ZONFEERS
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BRI - HERRERE

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The management and employees who are responsible for the key
functions of the Group have participated in preparing the ESG
report, assisted the Group in reviewing its operations, identifying
key ESG issues, and assessing the importance of such issues to
the Group’s business and stakeholders. With the identified material
ESG aspects, we incorporated their feedback into the process
of identifying the material topics, which act as the foundation of
formulating long-term ESG strategies as well as a reference to this
Report.

EEMME

Eﬁﬁﬁlxiyﬁ% E’]E.IEJE)SUE f]ﬁ//\fﬁ%ia
FROAEWE - BYHAKEB T HEE  ABIMRIRS Zim
&/uEE%EJA&%1$EZ%$H¥T$EI%%f’l&ﬂ SARRE T EY
2N BHELERNNERNRE HERAEER &M E
‘*EEE’JLEEP ﬁdf‘ﬁ%)\ﬂﬁﬂﬁfﬂﬁﬁ’]&ﬁ% R AR R
FIERRE HeRAERBAIRE URGRAKENS

Materiality Matrix
EEMIER

13,21

able Development Kingland

Importance to S

1,2,5,6,9,10, 11

3,4,7,12,14,16,17

18,19, 20, 22

Importance to Stakeholders
HAMEAMAHER

Protecting our planet RER M A IR

1. Air and noise emissions control 1. JBE R R MR HE A

2. Resource management (energy, water and waste) 2. BRERE (BEIR - KREEY)

3. Project management 3. EHRE®E

4. Site environment impact 4, TR

5. Green office 5. BERAE

6. Climate change 6. RIRE(L

Dedicated workforce WENLE D

7. Occupational health and safety 7. BERREELE

8. Employment practices 8. TE BB

9. Employee training and development 9. EEHIIRERE

10. Diversity and equal opportunity 10. Lt ETERE

11. Protecting human rights (child and forced labour) 11. REAE(EIRAHIST)

Responsible value chain EETHNEREE

12. Corporate governance and compliance 12. TEERRER

13. Anti-corruption 13. RES

14, Confidentiality and data privacy 14, W= R BB

15. Product and service quality management 15. EnkREE=ER

16. Customer safety, engagement, and satisfaction 16. BEPZE 2HKREE

17. Customers’ and users’ health and safety 17. EFPFRAFPHREREREZS

18. Supplier and subcontractor engagement 18. HERRSBEMER

19. Supplier and subcontractors’ environmental and social 19. HERAEDEENRERLEES
responsibility

20. Transparent and fair procurement practices 20. BRERRNFHEREBIES

Corporate citizen TEAR

27 Community investment and engagement 21. FLIE A B2

22. Site impact on local communities 22. MBIHEMHRNTE

Kingland Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

In view of the growing greenhouse effect and climate change,
energy conservation, carbon reduction, and minimizing pollution
have become a global issue that could affect any one of us. The
Group undertakes environmental protection as part of its corporate
responsibilities and is committed to implementing different
environmental protection measures to reduce the impacts on the
environment. We also adapt and are resilient to climate change
and the impacts of inevitable increases in extreme weather events.

EMISSIONS

The Group complies with the Air Pollution Control (Non-road
Mobile Machinery) (Emission) Regulation (Chapter 3112), Laws of
Hong Kong, in regard to machinery labeling requirements. At our
construction sites, we use machinery and equipment certified by
the Environmental Protection Department and monitor exhaust gas
emissions. We arrange inspection and maintenance on a regular
basis to ensure optimal engine performance and fuel usage.
Through implementing such measures, employees’ awareness of
reducing exhaust gas emissions has also been enhanced.

On the other hand, the Group works to reduce the amount of air
pollution, which is mostly caused by the vehicles and equipment
that are present on-site as well as the dust emissions from our
building sites. We frequently dispose of dusty debris in enclosed
containers and use water to control dust emissions from rock-
bearing, earth-moving, excavation, and drilling operations. Since
wind-blown dust can be especially dangerous for roads, we make
sure that muddy trails are regularly maintained and cleaned up. In
order to minimize route duplication and save needless emissions,
we also advise employees to plan their routes in advance and turn
off their cars when they are idle.

To prevent noise emissions to our nearby communities, we have
implemented the following mitigation measures at our construction
sites:

o Set up noise protection barriers and enclosures in the
vicinity of noise-sensitive receivers.

° Utilize machineries with lower noise levels whenever
practical.

o Carry out construction activities at reasonable hours.

o Obtain construction noise permit (if applicable) in

accordance with the Noise Control (General) Regulations
(Chapter 400A of the Laws of Hong Kong).

RIS - HERREHRE

RETREARE

ERRERE NSRBI INE - £78E R RFERIITRE
BRAEEMASEAENEIER ARESREREERAED
EHEEN D - WE AR BT E B IR FRE AR RS
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Eit BRI BERIERNEBRTCILR -

S AEEB R T B IR 5 A0S R A RR
BREMBOMEF RS BN ERSEHNE - RAREEE
PR a P BR IR IR BB R P 30 AR KRS B A - £77 - B R
HIEEMEENMEER - RN EAVREBEERLRABR - &
PIRELR TE B4R DB RS T RIB/NE - ARERM O BREET
WMOTBEOBER  RATERREREENRBIRG  LEEM
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BRI - HERRERE

With the continuation of our environmental protection measures,
and in view of the current business environment nature and
period of the construction project, the Group has set an
emission reduction target of reducing total GHG emissions by
5% by the year 2025 based on 2021’s figure. We will put efforts
to achieve other targets in the areas of waste management,
resource consumption. Our ability to improve our environmental
performance and fulfill our environmental goals is made possible by
tracking several environmental variables. As a means of reviewing
our environmental performance and formulating improvement
strategies, we have been monitoring our resource usage and
carbon emissions to help us reach the target.

For the Reporting Period, air emissions generated by the Group
were as follows:

ERNRELHREMAREERENFY  ARERFERITR
R RE-Z-—FHEFHNER T _AFHHEERE
BREBE %M BHR R - BHPITRBE IR EREENE
BRERBFRESENEMCER - ERRMBERTEE - R
FBEBRENAERRERE  YEKRRMNREKEER - ERRT
BAMRERARGIEREREH—EFE  BHA—BEEERN
BPIERE R REERER - R FIERKBER -

REIR - REBPFELEMNERERAT -

Unit 2024 2023
By —E-mE —E=-=
Emissions data from usage of vehicles EE i ARk REREEE
and gaseous fuel consumption BB
Nitrogen Oxide (NO,) ALY (NO,) kg T2 332.34 558.32
Sulphur Oxide (SOx) a1 ¥ (SOy) kg T7 6.69 0.98
Particulate Matter (PM) FERLY) (PM) kg T%& 46.93 48.57

For the Reporting Period, GHG emissions generated by the Group
were as follows:

Direct emission or removals from sources (Scope 1)

GHG emissions from stationary and mobile combustion sources

R|BEHA - AEEMELNEEREHRAT -

EES RS IRERER (B E1)
B € K2 B #A G TR OB = SR A BEIR

Unit 2024 2023
B —E-mEF —BZ=H
Gas Eh ]
Carbon Dioxide (CO») Z&1EH% (CO,) tonne CO,e 836.13 530.18
W_EtiREE
Methane (CH.) FR A2 (CH.) tonne CO.e 0.49 0.27
M — Al E &
Nitrous oxide (N2O) A1 A N:0) tonne CO»e 2.07 8.46
W _EtixE £
Energy indirect emissions (Scope 2) gERMEEEE Rk (EE2)
Electricity purchased from power companies BENARIBENE S
Unit 2024 2023
By —E-mE —E=-=
Gas Eh ]
Carbon Dioxide (CO») Z &bk (COy) tonne COse 48.73 31.09
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RIS - HERREHRE

Other indirect emissions (Scope 3) HibMzH ik (BE3)
Unit 2024 2023
By —E-mEF —B==
Source Gas
KR El ]
Paper waste disposed at landfills Carbon Dioxide (CO,) tonne CO.e 0.91 3.64
BEEIEHEE MR — At (COy) W _EtixEE
Electricity used for processing fresh water ~ Carbon Dioxide (CO,) tonne CO.e 0.08 0.31
and sewage by government department = 4{t i (CO,) W — S LIRE 2
BT SR RKRISKERARNESN
Construction waste sent for recycling Carbon Dioxide (CO») tonne CO.e 4.33 -
R E R R RE R —&EH% (CO,) M-SR tirE =
WASTE MANAGEMENT BERYEE

The Group’s waste management policy is aimed at minimizing the
generation of waste for disposal as far as reasonably practicable,
encouraging the use of sustainable and reusable materials which
are technically and economically viable, and requiring recyclable
materials to be separated from the waste pile and reused as
much as possible. In order to gradually minimize the amount of
garbage generated, we utilize the waste quantities from previous
years as a baseline. As such, procedures were implemented to
properly control the generation and disposal of trash with the aim
of minimizing the amount.

During the Reporting Period, our business operations did not
involve the production of hazardous waste. Waste generated onsite
was primarily non-hazardous construction waste. We managed
and sorted construction waste onsite as much as possible to
reduce the amount going into disposal and landfill. Proper handling
of construction waste was addressed and strengthened through
induction training and toolbox talks given at the commencement
of employment. In addition to providing accessible recycling bins
onsite, we repurposed excavated materials for backfilling. For the
remaining demolition waste, the Group appointed qualified waste
collectors and recyclers to ensure proper and safe disposal of
waste was performed.

The Group promotes waste reduction at the source and continues
to encourage our employees to fully utilize all materials to avoid
producing unnecessary waste and to reduce paper usage by
electronic means. Reminders of reducing waste are also posted in
offices to remind employees to go green in daily operations.

AEENBEEYERRRE EEREREATERTRERS
REBEEVMEL - RS SEEBRMMEE LA TR 8
LA FAHE TEERAIBRREAMHEEENESR B
B ERA  REUERERPNEELERE  HAABUNEFE
MEEEVBERMEEREL - Bt - HAIEGREFIAZ EESIA
FEERRE EHEZEREHE -

RIBEBMR BN EBREEL IS REEBEEEY - 08
ELMBERYIELBETREERY RMNBUREHERE
EEZRMETEENMDE MR EBEMRIENHE - BEE
) 6 Tt 3 A ME 1T A BRI )1 RN 0 B AR 53 R DA R R I N ok R SR R 3R
MOZERE - REMBREHRENHCWKAES - HAEEZED
HEFRANEE - RRBROFHEZYMN S  FAEHEEES
BEREBEEVREIRDRENERES REMWEBEEEY -

AREBEBIRBRME - WEBSEIREES T O ERMEMHLE#
REETVEMERY  MEREFHAUBDRRER - R,
IR PR ERUERERREBARERENEELEEFT IR

REH -
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BRI - HERRERE

The Group established a waste reduction target of reducing non-
hazardous waste by 5% by the year 2025 based on 2021’s figure.
To achieve our waste reduction target, the Group has adopted
the reduce, replace, and reuse approach, in line with national
initiatives, and our management will perform periodic reviews to
monitor the progress.

For the Reporting Period, the amount of non-hazardous waste
produced by the Group was as follows:

AEERE_T_—FHEEBHIER _T_AFABESEREY
B B%ERER R - REIRAERR  ASEREBEERERD
KARD BRMBAANTTE MRANVERASSETE
HESUASRER -

RBEPRR - AEEMEENETEEYHENT :

Non-hazardous waste Unit 2024 2023
BEBEZEY B —E-E —s=-=
Construction waste tonne 4,392.90 11,233.10
BEEED i1

Construction waste intensity tonne/project 54.23 193.67
REEEYEE W, B

Paper waste kg 779.56 758.68
REAR Fr

Paper waste intensity kg/employee 9.06 9.14
=R ]

USE OF RESOURCES EREHR

The Group understands that the Earth’s resources are limited.
Hence, judicious use of resources must go hand in hand with
emission reduction. Where feasible, the Group’s construction
machinery sector has prioritized purchasing construction
machinery with fuel efficiency. To achieve and secure a sustainable
future, the Group has established a target of reducing resource
consumption by 5% by the year 2025 based on 2021’s figure.

To meet our resource consumption target, we focused on
initiating “green thinking” to our staff, enhancing environmental
consciousness and sustainability in the workplace. Below are
some examples:

o Set and maintain average room temperatures at 25 degrees
Celsius;
o Switch off office equipment (e.g. printers, computers, and

monitors) before leaving the workplace;

o Use energy-friendly electrical appliances and devices such
as LED lighting, computers, and projectors;

o Use electrical appliances with Grade 1 energy efficiency
labels at our offices and construction sites to maximize
energy efficiency;

. Conduct regular checks and maintenance to ensure
efficiency of equipment and appliances; and

. Utilize double-sided printing and scan documents as
electronic files instead of printing.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024
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Along with energy conservation, the Group manages sewage
discharge strictly and uses water resources wisely to mitigate
water shortages in response to climate change’s impact on
freshwater availability. It also works to lessen its negative
environmental effects. Water-saving signage and notices are
displayed in prominent places to foster water conservation culture
and improve water management in our operations.

At our construction sites, the Group also encourages recollection,
reuse, and recycling of greywater to minimize freshwater
consumption. For instance, we spray roads and exposed or loose-
soil surfaces with recycled wastewater to suppress fugitive dust
emissions and for the use of site cleaning, washing of construction
vehicles, and car wheels.

RIS - HERREHRE

FEE R BE IR B R B ZISE@JET%EIE}’?M#E& jﬁ%%ﬂﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬁ
IKERAZRBRRKER - EMEERIEE L HRKEENZE
ZK‘*IJT@UJENWKEI;T%%%EXE’JEEWE. ﬁﬁi’]ﬁﬁﬁw’ﬁﬁ
BRETRRBEERE  AIBRE SRR A ZEHFIE
EBHHRAKER -

RS AEETREEHEY ERRERBEARK B2
PEAK RIKOEFE  Plan - 29 =) A R 7K R BB 3B B S AR BE SR X
B LIERE AN SEHBARARBERIER AT RER
B e

As the Group does not consume a significant amount of water in HARAEERERKZSP I EBERERERAK - BWRMNKEE
its business activities, we did not encounter any significant issue in FA7KOIR 73 TED I 428 T B A fr] 2 KRB o
sourcing water that is fit for purpose.
For the Reporting Period, the resources consumption by the REBEHA - AEBREBHNERNOT :
Group was as follows:
Unit 2024 2023
B —E-MmEF —E_-=
Electricity consumption kWh 73,829.00 79,727.00
HE= FRE
Electricity consumption intensity kWh/per employee 858.48 960.57
RERE TR EE
Water consumption m? 409.00 480.00
FEKE SR
Water consumption intensity m3/employee 4.76 5.78
FKREE SR BB

For the Reporting Period, the Group’s operations do not involve
any production process, it does not consume packaging materials.
Hence, this aspect is considered as irrelevant to the Group’s
operations.

ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

In a world that increasingly emphasizes ESG issues, it is our
moral obligation to see beyond the economic aspect and take a
preventive approach to mitigate adverse impacts on the natural
environment. To this end, we continuously seek to improve our
GHG emissions management and strive to align with international
and national policies and documents such as the Paris Agreement
and China’s “30-60 decarbonisation goal” by paying attention
to the environmental measures in our operations and actively
incorporating green elements into relevant management to reduce
any unnecessary consumption.

The Group’s environmental policy shows its commitment to
protecting the environment of the Earth. To minimize environmental
impacts concerning our business activities and services, we uphold
our standards for environmental protection to the satisfaction of
clients, customers, and the public. The Group is committed to
the continual improvement of environmental performance. This
environmental policy is communicated to all staff members of the
Group and our subcontractors and suppliers.

RBRERAN > AEENSEL | REFMEERE - HITEH
BRI R - Bt - R HAR A SRR E A ZEL TR -

BRRRER

EFEERARERRE HERRBEEMHR  HMANERS
BARBIEBEER @ JMERREANEG  BEHBEARRE
ﬁﬂ’ﬂ?\ﬂ%ﬂ Rt BPEES KRB AERBHERERE
W% H B (ERFE) KT B [30-606 5 A 12 1 % B & B R E
ﬁ&Xffﬁ%% BCBIRMEBETHNRRER BEREHE
TEMAREEER LB ER A BEAERE

ﬁ’igﬁﬁi&iﬂﬂlﬁiﬂﬁ,\aﬁlﬁﬁ iﬂzfﬂl’ﬁaii c REERE
ﬁ?ﬁﬁ?ﬂ%ﬁxﬁ@)&ﬁﬁ“iﬂa MR E  RAIRFERANRE
SR PRER EEE&’/}%E’JEI AEBRINFENRE
i BRE - ARBEBRRCEERAEEMBETARRMND
BERHER -
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BRI - HERRERE

In managing our emissions, the Group has complied with the
Public Health and Municipal Services Ordinance (Chapter 132 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter
311 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Waste Disposal Ordinance
(Chapter 354 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Water Pollution Control
Ordinance (Chapter 358 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Noise Control
Ordinance (Chapter 400 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Dumping
at Sea Ordinance (Chapter 466 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
Environmental Impact Assessment Ordinance (Chapter 499 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), and other regulations promulgated by the
government and currently applicable to the Group. For the sake of
compliance with relevant laws and regulations, we regularly assess
the environmental risks of our operations and adopt preventive
measures as necessary to reduce the risks.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was unaware of any cases
of non-compliance with laws and regulations that have a major
impact on the Group in terms of air and GHG emissions, noise
control, discharges into water and land, and the generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

EERHINE  AEEDET(AREERTBRGN) (FEZX
I51828) (= RFREHEH) (BB AL E) - (BF
MEREGD) (FREDFE4E) - ORITRE G (FHEE
5155358 %) ~ (R F B il &) (B AP F400%) - (8 LA
BIRHEDD (BB EDIFE 466 F) - CRI/Y BTG KO (FE
EDIFE 4998 ) AR BT M8 1 B3R E AN A LB A MR P -
AEARBERIESR  RATHFEEENRERR L&
W R ERERTE RS HE i AP R R R

R|BEMA - AEFRL TABERMTNETEERARIRERE
BER BEES - AR SUNEEREETERYEL
M AEEEERZENEREROENR -

Focus Area Our Approach
BT ERE BMHEX
Governance Board oversight: The Board meets twice a year to oversee climate-related strategies, policies, actions,
b=l and disclosure.
ESSEE EEe0F4RAMAgEHE  BERGEBORE  BOR  HEk#EE -
Management’s role: The Management supports climate action planning and internal policy setting, as
well as coordinating responses to climate-related risks.
EEENAC  EEERFFIREF(LERRELANIEE - UEGERNREZ(CAEERR -
Strategy Policies and guidelines: The Management meets regularly and discusses any potential climate change
REE risk to our business. Management will deploy adequate resources and take precautionary measures to

mitigate these risks. The corresponding actions will be implemented and reviewed from time to time to

assess their effectiveness.

BEANEE  EREERETEY

A R A G E R E DB R E R R - EIRE MR

ERWHRIMAR I AREZZRR - BRPIS TR BRI AEITE - ARFEERR -

Physical risks: We assess our sites’ exposure and vulnerability for impacts related to natural disasters/
weather-related events. We work closely with the sub-contractor at site and assist with implementing fast
response measures, regular inspections and hoarding to deal with typhoons and rainstorms.

BREAR: RMTERMSE0EEREEEALE  REEBSHOZENEAR RS - BME
RN BEEEYEE  WHBEERRLEREE THREREEESYE  NEHBEMER o

Transition risks: Impacts related to market risk are assessed in green construction technologies. We
keep abreast of the latest energy-saving technology and equipment and recommend it to the main
contractor and the sub-contractor. In line with the national initiative for smart technology, we work with
suppliers to bring in smart lighting, which uses sensors to help reduce energy usage.

BRER: mH5EREENZE N EEE R ETE  RAIKRE T MR 8RS Rl AR

WREAEEEDBEEE -  AEREREEERIMNEZ -

BEREEPRADEERER

Risk Management
EBRER

PR S S ABRERA - (£

Climate-related risks are incorporated into the Group’s risk management framework and ESG materiality
assessment by different stakeholders. The Group will monitor and follow up on both transition and physical

climate-related risks and set up policies to mitigate relevant risks and respond to management
BMEERERE CEBORBAARNEBRORRERESRAN  URETRANSE@ETIRERE 1t
REBBEENTEP AEERKERMBERGECAENER REBREMR - I HF BRI R

[\ B K2 1) B IR A M [

Metrics and Targets
EEEBE

Our management encourages employees to participate in green workshops to enhance their environmental
awareness, and continuously assess compliance with the green office guidelines.

BMEEESBEE2NZEMIEUNREFAERRED  LHETHTSRERAERSIMNER -
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group regards all employees as its most valuable assets as
well as the Group’s closest and most reliable partner in order to
promote sustainable development. As the business grows, the
Group must establish sustainable human capital to attract and
retain talents. With an aim to improve the cohesiveness of our
staff and our long-term competitiveness in the market, the Group
is committed to offering equal opportunity employment and
professional development to all employees and onsite staff. It is
one of the Group’s commitments to build a harmonious workplace
in the absence of any form of discrimination in our operations.

Throughout the recruitment and promotion process, we value
and treat all employees and job applicants equally. Candidates
are evaluated based on their qualifications and job experience,
whereas irrelevant criteria including ethnicity, gender, disability,
family situation, religion, and political attitude have no bearing on
the process.

A comprehensive human resources management policy was
formulated to support human resources function, which covers
guidelines on recruitment and promotion, compensation and
dismissal, working hours, rest periods, appraisal, training, and
other benefits. We offer competitive remuneration, promotional
opportunity, compensation, and benefit packages to attract and
retain talents. With respect to salary adjustment and promotion,
an annual review system has been adopted to assess the
performance of our staff and used as an indicator for salary
increment. Employees are also entitled to discretionary bonus
to recognize their contributions to the Group by reference to the
Group and individual performance.

For resignation on employee’s own accord, the Human Resources
Department will conduct an exit interview with the resigned
employee to provide an opportunity for the employee to discuss
the working experience with the Group. The feedback received are
beneficial to the human resources system, working environment
and future positioning of jobs.

All employees are also welcomed to make comments and
suggestions through various communication channels such
as letters, emails, or by communicating with their supervisors,
department heads, or human resources department. We make
sure to keep the detail of such communications and the identity of
the employee confidential, and to address any grievances of the
employee as appropriate as we can.

RIS - HERREHRE

BRRZEIER

AEEKMAERERAEREENEE  ARKGLEAEERT
U JAENSERHE  MTETRHEER - EEEBHER -
AEBUARTAFHBENANERUARAREEAS - KEH
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ETGERREREFTE -
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AAREEUAEENTR -
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RIE - HERAERE

Staff Composition BIARK
As of 31 December 2024, we employed a total of 86 (31 December HE_T-_NF+=—A=+—8 " &ME Hees (==
2023: 85) full-time employees, including back-office and site staff. —=f+ZA=+—H:85%)2BESR EHWAER
WEET -
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=
Staff Composition No. of People Percentage No. of People Percentage
ETHAR AE BatE AE Aotk
Overall e 86 100% 85 100%
By Gender MR8 5
Male B4 69 80% 70 82%
Female M 17 20% 15 18%
By Employment Type REBERE S
Full-time 28 86 100% 85 100%
Part-time R - - - -
By Age Group BRERARE D
18-30 years old 183 £ 305% 7 8% 3 4%
31-40 years old 31 R E405% 19 22% 19 22%
41-50 years old A1 B E 505 17 20% 16 19%
51-60 years old 51 R 2 605% 28 33% 32 37%
Over 60 years old 60 5% bA 15 17% 15 18%
By Employment Category  Z{EREER &5
Senior Management =RERE 11 13% 13 15%
Middle Management FREEE 13 15% 13 15%
General Staff —ET 62 72% 59 70%
By Geographical Region RitBE D
Hong Kong B 85 99% 85 100%
Macau R - - - -
Mainland China B A 1 1% - -
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Staff Turnover

In general, subsidiaries of the Group would make proper upward
downward adjustment to the number of existing staff in the
recruitment process based on the scale and actual situation or
progress of the existing sites and the sites awarded. As most
employees on the sites are paid on a daily basis, the employee
turnover is relatively high. Hence, daily workers were excluded
from our annual turnover rate calculation.

RIS - HERREHRE

BIR%

— s AREOHBAABRARBRPRIEREHRE
RS RENRERER R AL U A8 T ABIEL @SN
FTHE - BRABAIHERSARFIES - SR RBM
YRS - Bt HESFRRAKEBLRIABFIA -

2024 2023

—EBNF —=E—=
Staff Turnover BIk% No. of People Turnover Rate No. of People Turnover Rate

A K= AE K E
Overall f2g: ] 16 19% 27 32%
By Gender R85
Male B4 14 20% 18 26%
Female pegis 2 13% 9 60%
By Age Group RERAERNE D
18-30 years old 18 & 308% 1 20% (5} 167%
31-40 years old 31 E4075% 3 16% 9 47%
41-50 years old 41 E505% 2 12% 9 56%
51-60 years old 51 Z6075% (5) 17% 4 13%
Over 60 years old 60 7% LA 5 33% - -
By Geographical Region RitBEE D
Hong Kong aBE 16 19% 26 31%
Macau JEPFY - - 1 =
Mainland China ERREIIAp: - - - -

For the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
cases of non-compliance with laws and regulations concerning
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunities, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare, including but not
limited to the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), Construction Workers Registration Ordinance
(Chapter 563 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Sex Discrimination
Ordinance (Chapter 480 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Disability
Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 487 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and the Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws of
Hong Kong).

R|REHAR  AREL P ABER BT HREEGERREE - 3
BRE TR AKE FEEE Zl REBUAREM
MR BNOBBEZERNER - SEETRNUERGED)
(BREDESTE) - GEEXT AEMGH) (BB EDIF 6563
B) CHERIBAR D) (BB EHFE 480F) - CRIREAR GO (F
BIEPIE 487 E) RARKEIEGRD) (FREPIE608E) -
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BRI - HERRERE

HEALTH AND SAFETY

Because of the nature of construction activities, accidents are
more common than in other industries. Hence, the Group has
implemented a health and safety policy. The Group has stated
in its policy that it is committed to protecting its employees,
subcontractors, and the general public from the effects of our
business activities.

We are devoted to providing a safe and harmonious working
environment for our employees. We reinforced our leadership,
management system, and safety training programmes throughout
the year in order to build our safety culture and improve our overall
OHS performance. Applicable laws and regulations such as the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), Employees’ Compensation Ordinance
(Chapter 282 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and Factories and
Industrial Undertakings Ordinance (Chapter 59 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), and Macau’s Legal Regime on Compensation for
Damage Arising from Work Accidents and Occupational Diseases,
are fully complied by the Group.

In addition to comprehensive directives and interactive
engagement, regular dissemination and training sessions are also
the essential components of our safety management systems.
We publish periodic safety bulletins along with occupational
health and safety news and events information internally to sustain
the momentum of safety awareness. The Group acknowledges
that certain of our projects may include high-risk activities such
as demolition activity that exposes our employees to heights or
confined spaces. In addition to the management’s monitoring of
the working environment, employees must follow labour discipline,
diligently follow rules and regulations, gain necessary first-aid
knowledge, and obtain appropriate education and training at work.
We also conduct induction safety training and safety toolbox talks
for new employees, including companies’ safety policies and
emergency measures to ensure they are competent to discharge
their OHS responsibilities and obligations and respond to
emergencies, so that employees’ awareness of workplace hazards
is heightened.

Regular safety meetings between project management,
safety officers, subcontractors’ representatives and worker’s
representatives serve as platforms for the various interested parties
to voice out safety issue. Throughout the construction period, OHS
meetings are held regularly to address concerns, share the latest
information and best practices, and identify possible alternative
solutions in an expected manner.

The Group also makes use of regular safety training and
inspections to ensure employees are aware of the important work
environment safety requirements. Induction training or briefing on
relevant health and safety policies is provided to new personnel,
and also to workers prior to the commencement of work, so that
they are familiar with safety requirements and are able to discharge
their duties in a safe manner or report hazards to minimize the
likelihood of accidents or workplace injuries.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024
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With the increased concern for public health, health and safety
have remained our top priorities. The Group is committed not
only to protecting its staff but also assisting the prevention of the
spread of the virus in the local community. The Group will strive to
strengthen disinfection and sanitisation of the workplace.

Due to the nature of the construction industry, the risk of work
injuries cannot be eliminated entirely. For the past three years
including the Reporting Period, the work injury statistics for the
Group were as follows:

RIS - HERREHRE

BEEAMBREIARETE RENRE2DARAEENES
ZE -AEEMEFNRREELET - MERAIRNEBD LK
SEEMTENER -AEESB MR TESMEOESMEL -

BHREEXNEEER  TERREE T2 NBE=F (8
BREPH A REBENTERFTEBENT

Work Injury Statistics Unit 2024 2023 2022
IEHTEIE B —E-NE —s=-= —s=-=
Number of work-related fatalities case(s) 0 0 0
TEMEBERT A R

Rate of work-related fatalities percentag 0% 0% 0%
TR T % paNss

Number of reported accidents (sick leave > 3 days) case(s) 4 4 6
BESFWRERRENIK) R

Lost days due to work injury day(s) 530 818 1,066
THEEHMERITIERE X

The Group did not suffer any serious site safety incidents during
the Reporting Period. We are pleased to note that the lost
days due to work accidents has steadily decreased in 2023
and further in 2024 and we will continue to put more efforts to
reduce the risks of work injuries of employees in the coming
year. In addition to providing adequate protective equipment and
implementing aforementioned site safety measures, the Group
introduced new plant and equipment to further enhance site safety
and productivity, such as camera drones which enhance the
effectiveness of site safety supervision. For the Reporting Period,
the Group was not aware of any cases of non-compliance with
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group
in relation to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

AEERFESHALBELEEANHRE T L2 IR - ROMKA
EED ITBEREHNBRTERBR _ZT_=FBERD
WHRZZEZMFEE—FFD  BRPGEERRR—FEMAD
EREEEIERAR RERTEENRERBERER LT
REEEIN  REESIENHERRENE-TNMRTHZ 2
RReEEN  PIRe T2 BB R EAMME - NRE
A AEETATABREATETERRELETHERERR
EREERIBEUEEMEAREREAFENERIERN
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BRI - HERRERE

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Training and continuous development are indispensable to the
Group’s employees to keep abreast of the everchanging trend of
the industry. With an intention to lay down a concrete groundwork
for the Group’s sustainable development in the construction
business, we are committed to supporting the education and
training of our staff. To incentivize the employees to acquire new
skills and increase their professional knowledge, the Group has
policies in place to encourage its employees to pursue training for
the advancement of their careers that will benefit the Group and
the employees.

Our training programmes span from professional and technical
training to personal development skills, and all of our workers
must undergo an induction training to ensure they fully understand
the Group’s safety and health standards. Furthermore, the Group
provides proper employment and safety training to employees,
ensuring that they have the necessary safety knowledge and
work abilities to deal with situations and problems that may arise
at various work sites. Training materials are updated on a regular
basis to ensure compliance with our quality management system
and industry standards while maximising employee benefits.

For the Reporting Period, the breakdown of the training data for
the Group was as follows:

Average Training Hours Completed:

R R

RERBSEENTERY  HAKBEREM =B RFER
BAANKR - BT EAEEEREXRBOAFEERETRE
ER  BMBOXHEINHEREI - REBEEEEH
RERRTEZEEND  AEECHERRIDEEERIR
ERRIBI KMEAEERERHAZE -

BAIMIE ISR EE R RERMIEIIAEEARRXEE - B
BIANABRRABEI  URREETETRASENRER
REZLE - I AEBBRBRUCEENRERZ 2
BRARSABUENZ2MEN TERE  AIEHESRIE
SAA R IR IE N R o B g E R AR
BHRMNWEETEBANRTERE I REBTREAMNE -

RIWERR - AEENEIBIZAADT

TR Z I P IR

Average Training hours completed SR 2 AW TG BB in 2024 in 2023
R-ZE-WmE R-ZBZ-=F

By Gender R RIE D

Male S 4.30 5.72

Female 4 0.62 -

By Category RER &5

Senior management =REE 1.36 1.77

Middle management PREEE 6.54 7.92

General staff —RET 3.58 4.65

Rate of employees being trained: ZIHNEELE

Rate of employees being trained ZHNEELE in 2024 in 2023
R-E-NEF R-ZE=Z=

By Gender BRIl 5

Male B 42% 100%

Female eq3 6% 0

By Category RER &5

Senior management EREEE 9% 6%

Middle management FREEE 54% 28%

General staff —®ET 37% 66%

Kingland Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

LABOUR STANDARDS

We strictly prohibit the employment of child and forced labour in
our workplace by adhering to the Employment of Children and
Employment of Young Persons (Industry) Regulations under the
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
and other applicable labour laws and regulations in Hong Kong
and Macau. To avoid illegal employment of child and forced labour,
the human resources department of the Group requires all job
applicants to provide valid identity documents to ensure that they
can be lawfully employed prior to the confirmation of employment.
Important details such as job duties, locations and working hours
of the staff are also set out clearly in the employment contract
to protect their rights and interests and forced labour is strictly
prohibited. If child labour or forced labour is discovered to be
engaged as a result of a breach in the recruitment process,
the Group will immediately halt the activity and conduct an
investigation.

For the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any cases
of non-compliance with laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group in relation to preventing child and forced
labour.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

To effectively manage environmental and social risks throughout
the supply chain, we must maintain open communication and
interaction with our suppliers and subcontractors. The Group
employs thorough assessment and monitoring methods to
guarantee that our supply chain is appropriate and capable of
performing our tasks. We keep a list of competent suppliers and
subcontractors based on characteristics such as our client’s major
contract requirements, the quality of materials, work, and services,
and previous collaborative experience.

The Group communicates with suppliers and sub-contractors
regularly to maintain a close relationship with them and review
and monitor their performance of the suppliers and provide
feedback to them from time to time. Furthermore, we require our
suppliers and subcontractors to adhere to sustainable business
practices. We evaluate and monitor their environmental and social
performance in terms of ethical issues, human rights, product
responsibilities and environmental impact, ensuring all suppliers
and subcontractors adhere to our procurement policies. In return,
we provide transparency and fairness in our procurement process
and contractual agreements.

The Group has formulated policies on regional procurement
by giving priority to procurement from local suppliers to reduce
energy consumption and greenhouse gases emissions due to long
distance transportation processes.

RIS - HERREHRE
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BRI - HERRERE

For the Reporting Period, the number of suppliers by geographical
region of the Group was as follows:

RIEHA - AEERMES SWHERBRANT

Number of Suppliers by Geographical Region 2024 2023
RitEE S NEEFEE —E-lmE —®==

Hong Kong BB 91 115
The People’s Republic of China REARER 9 30
Korea [ = 2
Europe BOM 1 1
Total “BET 101 148

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group considers customer satisfaction as a key factor to the
success of project management. The Group strives to understand
and integrate customers’ needs into our project design and
planning of construction sites management. Besides, we endeavor
to incorporate sustainable principles throughout our value chain in
order to mitigate social and environmental risks and safeguard the
interests of our shareholders. In view of this, we conduct ethical
business practices, maintain high-quality for our construction
projects, and foster healthy and long-term relationships with our
suppliers and subcontractors. These indispensable qualities are
the cornerstones to deliver better results.

To ensure the Group can bring quality services and sustainable
projects to clients, we regularly control and monitor processes of
the projects as well as adoption of quality management system
(“QMS”) to enhance our services. The system has been assessed
and certified as meeting the standards of the International
Organisation for Standardisation (“ISO”) 9001:2015. Adequate
training is also provided to all levels of employees, to ensure their
awareness of the QMS in their tasks periodically.

For the Reporting Period, we received no complaints or claims
from customers arising from the quality issues of work performed
either by us or our sub-contractors, which in the view of directors
of the Company, is attributable to the effective quality control
measures.

The Group is committed to complying with the confidentiality
rules and regulations. Other than carrying out the required work,
customers’ information is prohibited to use without prior consent.
In accordance with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong), all of our employees
are obligated to retain in high confidentiality any information
obtained in connection with their employment. We strictly protect
the customers’ data and information by taking various protection
measures, such as regular security updates, access right control
and adequate hosting and server security. The HR Department is
responsible to observe the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance and
review our personnel and business practices from time to time to
ensure its compliance.
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We respect the intellectual property rights of third parties and are
committed to abiding by the Copyright Ordinance (Chapter 528 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), and other relevant laws and regulations,
confidentiality agreements and internal policies to protect all
intellectual property related to the Group and operations. To avoid
infringement of any third party’s intellectual property rights, we
prohibit our employees from using unlicensed computer software
or making unauthorized software copies. The Employee Handbook
also stipulates the code and provisions that require our employees
to comply.

As a construction work contractor, the Group did not have material
issues concerning advertising and labeling matters. Nevertheless,
we require our employees to provide customers with accurate and
true information on the Group’s services.

For the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any cases
of non-compliance with laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group in relation to health and safety, advertising,
labelling, and privacy matters related to products and services.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group is committed to achieving a high level of ethical
standard in its business operations, and does not tolerate any
forms of corruption, fraud and all other behaviours violating work
ethics. We strictly comply with the relevant laws and regulations in
relation to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, including
but not limited to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201
of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Chapter 615 of the Laws
of Hong Kong).

We believe that honesty, integrity, and fairness are vital values that
are essential for our long-term growth and success. As a result,
we have built a strong internal control system to avoid behaviours
such as bribery, extortion, fraud, and money laundering, while also
communicating to our staff good business practices and banned
conduct such as soliciting benefits and taking presents. Regular
training sessions will also be conducted for management, and
frequent reminders will be distributed to employees to increase
ethical awareness in business operations. The Group has also
formulated an Anti-Corruption Policy to provide information and
guidance to our personnel on how to recognise and deal with
bribery and corruption.

The tendering process is vital to our business, and all tendering
documents are kept confidential and restricted to concerned
parties only. Fairness is needed to protect the interests of the
Group and our clients. Employees responsible for tendering
must comply with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap.
201 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and refrain from exchanging or
communicating any sensitive information with or to competitors,
from participating in price-fixing, imposition of restrictions on clients
or abuse of a dominant market position.
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BRI - HERRERE

The Group encourages employees to report any suspected
unlawful activity and protects whistleblowers from unjustified
disciplinary action, unfair treatment, and harm. A thorough
investigation of the reported event will be conducted, followed by
disciplinary procedures such as termination of employment and
reporting of the problem to the competent authorities, who will
take appropriate action based on any findings.

For the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any cases
of non-compliance with laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group in relation to bribery, extortion, fraud, and
money laundering.

GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY

Striving to be a responsible corporate citizen, we are dedicated to
enhancing our community for the better. We respect local culture
and value, encourage our employees to participate in public
welfare or charity events and contribute to our local community.

In the future, the Group shall keep abreast of the latest trends and
best practices related to environmental protection at construction
sites and workers’ health and safety to extend our care to the
community further.
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AEESBEERSEMSRIPLEE  YREBHFELZA
BERERD  TRAFHFEREE - RASHMBSNSEHET
HERE  AREREEEF  BEKLERBRLIAIEE
RHEMEE  EREREASERRIVEENTH

R|RERRN - AEBY IABERMTETHEBBR DR K
FFRAEEMBAREBEERZENEZRIEROENR -

Bl E
BERB—HZBEENEEAR  RABAORKZHMANLE -
BMPESEMXERER SBRMNEEZ2EAGREEE

P REWEBIEL TR

RAR AEESZEZFEMBREERERENZTBE NEK
EERARTARRER S E—PRARMELEOBE -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
CONTENT INDEX

The following table provides an overview of the general disclosures
and key performance indicators (“KPIs”) of various aspects under
each subject area as set out in the then Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide, which are either cross-referenced to
the relevant chapters of the ESG report or supplementing the ESG

RIS - HERREHRE

BB HERAERRES

TREHRESRE HEOAERSESIMENSEIEREER
TAREES R ERERERER (RRERIERD i
B OHyERE HSOABEREEEEHIHEZR  IUE
BRI e ROAEWSE -

report with additional information.

Description
i

Reference

2%

ENVIRONMENTAL
RE

Aspect A1: EMISSIONS
BEAT : BERY

General Disclosure

— MR

KPI A1.1
RASE 45 B IZ AT
KPIA1.2
FASE4E BUEIE A1.2
KPIA1.3
BASEAE IR IRAL.3
KPIA1.4
RASE A4S BB IZAL.4
KPI A1.5

FAREBUEIZALS
KPI A1.6

A AEBUEIZA1.G

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

ERABEREBREREHEN  MKRIHOES EEREESEENNE
EER (@B RO ETFEHETABEAZENBAEERAIIN
BE o

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

BER iR R AR R BE P BUE -

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

E# (FE1) keREE (BE2) AEREBAVNE (UM E) &k (#E
R ERE(MAGESEN - §IRKXMAHE) -

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
MEABZEEYRSE CAEHE) R(ER) BE (MUEESEM -
BEZBTE) -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
FEAREEEYEAE UAEHE) R(WER)BE (MUEBESEM -
BEFRBEE)

Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

AT A BENE B B R RET L B EMEIN TR
Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and
a description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them
HEBEEEREEEEYNFE - RERAEI I AREBRERBES
BB EPTERERE P8R

SBREEEZERARAR —ZONFEERS

Environmental Sustainability

REAHEER

Emissions
HERR

Emissions

PR

Emissions

B

Waste Management
BEEMER
Environment and Natural
Resources
BRRERRAER
Waste Management

R E L
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RIE - S RBERE

Description

Ei:pus

Reference

2

Aspect A2: USE OF RESOURCES

BHEA2: ERER
General Disclosure

—RIWE
KPI A2.1
BB AR IR A2
KPI A2.2

FRERIEIRA2.2
KPI A2.3

R ERIEIZA2.3
KPI A2.4

RSB RUEIRA2.4
KPI A2.5

A EBUEIZA2.5

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water, and other
raw materials.

BRERER (BIEEIR - KR EARMED) BUR ©

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or
oil) in total (kWh in ’000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

RERAEISMERER SR (INE - moih) 4
ETE+:>&Mr<§DL/<tEEDE{L l’IE }jmu+#>

gRE (U TETRE

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,

per facility).

BREKEREE (WAGES B BERBHE) -

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.

RFTEI LR EAN R B ERREDE L B IEMEIM SR -
Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

i USREGE AR E Al B AERIRERE - ARFTEI LR AR B IR R AE
B BRI R

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes), and if
applicable, with reference to per unit of production volume.

HERAABEMHNEE UNE) (ER) 2E8ULES -

Aspect A3: THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

BHEAS: RERARARER
General Disclosure

— AR PR
KPI A3.1

BASR AR ARE IR AS1

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment
and natural resources.
BRBEITAHRBERAAERERNERZEHNEE -

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

BAEBEHHRERRAERNEAZENECRNEEEHAFENTTY -

Aspect A4: CLIMATE CHANGE

BEA4: RIFE1
General Disclosure

—RIWE
KPI A4.1

BB B IR IR A4

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
BRIREHEE RIS HETAEEYENERREHBEEENBOR -
Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted,
and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage
them.

BRI GHBETAELETYENEARGHEBER  LEHTH -
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Use of Resources

ERE R
Use of Resources

BIRE A
Use of Resources

BIRE M

Use of Resources

BIRE M

Use of Resources
BIRfEA
Use of Resources

BREM

Environment and Natural
Resources
RIERRKAER
Environment and Natural
Resources
RIERRKAER

Climate Change

RIRERIL
Climate Change
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RIE - B RBERE

Description Reference
g 2%
SOCIAL

e

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

ERRZETIER

Aspect B1: EMPLOYMENT

EEB1: EE

General Disclosure

— MR

KPI B1.1

RABRAE M IE1E B .1
KPI B1.2

A AE BUIEIZB1.2

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws

and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, other benefits
and welfare.

A RARE BEREA - IENH - RE - FTERE 2ot
RIBARIA R E A B RAEFIE) - @B RO BFHETAGTERTE
BIEBDE R KR DI & kY -

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical
region.

IR - EFBEL - FiRERI RES D HIEBRE -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.

BRI FERAN KRB DMNEERARLE

Aspect B2: HEALTH AND SAFETY

EmB2: @FERZ2

General Disclosure

— AR EE

KPI B2.1
RS UIE IR B2.1
KPI B2.2
FARARIEIRB2.2
KPIB2.3

RAR AR AN IE15B2.3

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing
a safe working environment and protecting employee from occupational
hazards.
FERFZE2TERERMREESREBMENLEEN  @BXK : kb)E
THETABEAZENHBERZRRANER

Number and rate of work-related fatalities.
ETERRMIL T A ABUR L o

Lost days due to work injury.

RAITGHEATIIEEE -

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they
are implemented and monitored.

MM FARANBRRFERLZ 25 - ARBEBRTRERITE -

Aspect B3: DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

EHB3 : #RERE

General Disclosure

— MR
KPI B3.1

BB AR WUIE IR B3.1
KPI B3.2

R 4RANIR1RB3.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description for training activities.
BRARAREET IIERE & H LR ER - B INES -
The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g.
senior management, middle management).

RIEFIRESER (NSRERE TREEE) ASNXIEERDL -
The average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category.

RURIREERMNE D  FREETHIIIN TR -

Employment and Labour
Practices

RENBTER

Employment and Labour
Practices — Staff Composition
ERREIEHR-BEITMEX
Employment and Labour
Practices — Staff Turnover
ERERBEIBHR-BIRE

Health and Safety

RERZZ
Health and Safety
RERZZ
Health and Safety

RERZE
Health and Safety

BEMZE

Development and Training

R R
Development and Training

R R
Development and Training

R R

SBREEEZERARAR —ZONFEERS
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RIE - S RBERE

Description
g

Reference

2

Aspect B4: LABOUR STANDARDS

EEB4 : & T XA
General Disclosure
— R
KPI B4.1

RE SR 4R IR 1Z B4. 1
KPI B4.2
BB BUIEIRB4.2

OPERATING PRACTICES

&EE

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing
child and forced labour.
BEMIELETRARFISTH  @QBE: RO ETHETABEAFEN
MHEEERRDIEE R o

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.

AR EEE B AR R E T KRGS T -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.

HRAERRER BN ERBRIB AR -

Aspect B5: SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

[EmBs5: HEHEEE

General Disclosure
— M=
KPI B5.1
i $R 4R U5 1 B5.1
KPI B5.2
RE SR A5 R 15 B5.2
KPI B5.3
AR E IR 12 B5.3

KPI B5.4

RS AR 4515 B5 .4

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
ERHEENRR IR R ECE

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

EimEE SN HEREE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers
where the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and
monitored.

MG EEAMERNED  MERTEREMNNHEREE - ARE
BITRER T

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
MG REHNHEEESERGHNIRERESRRMED - U RAEERT
REERFIE °

Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

R EREHREERREZBRREDRRENES - AREERITR

ERGE-
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Labour Standards

& T AR
Labour Standards
5 TR

Labour Standards
& T AR

Supply Chain Management

Hreges

Supply Chain Management

HresEE R

Supply Chain Management

HregEs

Supply Chain Management

Mg E R

Supply Chain Management

HregEs
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RIE - B RBERE

Reference

2

Aspect B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

BEB6: EmMER
General Disclosure

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and
safety, advertising, labeling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of trade.

—RIE

BHMREHRERTRBOREENELZSE  BEE

FTRHY: @BE R o) ETHETABEAYE

KPI B6.1

and health reasons.

BB AR B 1R B6.1
KPI B6.2

BB AR IE1R B6.2
KPI B6.3

BB AR RIS B6.3
KPI B6.4

BB AR WIE1R B6.4
KPI B6.5

HIE SR EBEREMBYIRT -
Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are

implemented and monitored.

RAdR 4R 515 B6.5

Aspect B7: ANTI-CORRUPTION
EBEB7 : RES
General Disclosure

U B & EHHRE R FLRBUOR

LA K AE BA#A

ZHELBEEUARES
HARRER RARBIER -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety

EERCEXERAHTRAZLEEREAMEARKNT AL
Number of products and service-related complaints received and how they
are dealt with.

BEARNE G RIRGOIZFE B ARESHT% -

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

iR R REANBREEEENED -
Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

TMEEERTTE

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery,
corruption, fraud, and money laundering.

— AR R

BEAFE

KPI B7.1

AR LA - B5 - MERAZEM  @BE  ROYUTHETAS
HARREA R R AR Bl ER) o
Number of concluded legal cases regarding corruption brought against the

issuer or its employees during the reporting period.

A E M IEIZ BT .1

COMMUNITY
HE

Aspect B8: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

BEBS: tERE
General Disclosure

RBERRHBEBETALERENE) ST ARELCEENEITFHR
A -

i

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the

community where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the community’s interests.

— MR

JEAL [ M S AR -

KPI B8.1

health, culture, sport).

AR BT B8
KPI B8.2
FASEAE 1515 B8.2

BRAMMEZ2ERTHRETALEMELETENHREEREDGE
Areas of contribution (e.g., education, environmental concerns, labor needs,
BRERE (WHE  BRREE -BIFK R k- 85) -

Resources contributed (e.g., money or time) to the focus area.

EBIRBABAER (M ELEHE) -

SHEEZERERAR

Product Responsibility

N/A

AN iE A
N/A

T3

Product Responsibility
EmEE

N/A

Recall procedures are not
relevant to our operations.

O] A2 Fr B P B 55 488 A
Product Responsibility

EmBEE

Anti-Corruption

k&S
Anti-Corruption

RES

Giving Back to the Community

[ 88t [
Giving Back to the Community
Bl 84t (&

N/A
FEH

—ENFEFERE
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Report of Directors
EEEWRE

The Directors hereby present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s principal activity is the provision of concrete demolition
service in Hong Kong and Macau as a subcontractor. The principal
activity of the Company is investment holding of its subsidiaries.
The names and principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 12 to the consolidated financial statements. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the Financial Year 2024.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
review of the Group’s business, a description of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group, environmental policies of the
Group, compliance with laws and regulations by the Group, and
indication of likely future development in the Group’s business,
can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis set out
on pages 5 to 13 of this report. This discussion forms part of this
Report of Directors.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group, as extracted from the consolidated financial statements of
the Company for the last five years is set out on page 124 of this
report. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s results for the Financial Year 2024 and the financial
positions of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 70 to 123.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend in
respect of the Financial Year 2024.

DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations were made by the Group during
the Financial Year 2024.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements during the Financial Year 2024 in the

property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 13
to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2024, the Company’s issued share capital was
HK$12,096,000 and the number of its issued ordinary shares was
241,920,000 of HK$0.05 each.

Details of movements in the share capital during the Financial
Year 2024 are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The Company did not have any treasury shares (as defined in Rule
1.01 of the Listing Rule) as at 31 December 2024.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024

BEEHREZEN
Wk

TREBREBORE

AEBIZEBDIEERDERNTERBRMRRRLTF

ﬁ%%°$@ﬂ%i%¥%%ﬁ%% AR B - HHT B
ACIEEREVSESE T )i o) Wﬁﬁimim REHEWE

EEBUEAR T _NFHBEETEEAE

“MEMBERENRE MRERSRAME

EREBARGOIMRORELZEEBNE T TREINT
BREAEEZESDE  ANEB RN T 2R R HE R -
AEENRFRERER AEERRZEZREANARBARAE
BEBARRNATREERAR IR AREESZ1BEMHANE
BESWEOMPEN R mBRAEESWMEN &0 -

MBHE
BHREARANBERAFENGAEVBEREIOAEHNE T

BEE BEEMNBBEBREENARSESF 1248 - ZBEBL T
BB ZI B HER— B D

EERKRE

AEER_T_NEPRFEZ2ER  URARARAEER
ZHOPBARR  BRE7T0E123B 2 HEFBHRRA

EXTESIN T OMERBFRIRMN RIS -

B

AEER T -_NFPRFELBIELZES LEMIBIA -
M- BEREE

ARSRE Y - RBRER-_Z-_NFYRFENEDFIER
“A%%ﬁEWEBO

&

RZZTE-_MFEF+=A
12,096,000 ¢ + B2 %
E{E0.0F)/’%TE °©

+—HB AXR2BEBIOTREA
TR BB A& 241,920,000 0% @ K

mm

NF - MEMEREE R RARDF RS A M HRAN
10

R-ZB-—MOE+-A=+—0 ARFLEEAEERHD (F
ZR EMHRRE101E) -



RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Financial Year 2024 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 72 of this
annual report and note 33 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had no distributable
reserves available for distribution to its shareholders.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 22
November 2016 (the “Scheme”). The principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme are summarised in Appendix |V to the Prospectus.
The Scheme will be implemented in full with the requirements
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

Particulars of the Scheme are set out in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements of this report.

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the Scheme since the adoption of the Scheme and there
was no share option outstanding as at 31 December 2024. The
total number of Shares available for grant under the Scheme was
18,440,000 Shares, representing 5.56% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of this report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed above, no
equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares
were entered into by the Company during the Financial Year 2024
or subsisted at the end of the Financial Year 2024.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Financial Year 2024.
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Report of Directors
EEEWRE

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Financial Year 2024 and
up to the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Shek On (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chow Chun To (resigned on 2 December 2024)

Mr. Chan Kwok Wing Kelvin (resigned on 2 January 2025)

Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond

Mr. Zhang Zhang (appointed on 2 December 2024)

Mr. An Wen Long (appointed on 14 March 2025)

Mr. Xu Jiahao (appointed on 2 January 2025 and resigned
on 14 March 2025)

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 14 to 17 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract that is significant in
relation to the Group’s business, to which the Company, its holding
company or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the Financial Year 2024.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its holding
company or subsidiaries was a party and in which a controlling
Shareholder had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the Financial
Year 2024.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial term of three years and
will continue thereafter until terminated in accordance with the
terms of the agreement. Non-executive Director and independent
non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of three years
and can be renewed in accordance with our Articles and the
applicable Listing Rules.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) has entered into
any service contracts with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment compensation other than the statutory compensation.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of its independent non-executive Director in respect of their
independence in accordance with the requirements of Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and all independent non-executive Directors are
considered to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ RETIREMENT AND RE-ELECTION

Pursuant to article 108(a) of the articles of association of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at each
annual general meeting of the Company, provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election
and shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at
which he retires. The Directors to retire by rotation every year shall
include (so far as necessary to ascertain the number of Directors to
retire by rotation) any Director who wishes to retire and not to offer
himself for re-election. Any further Directors so retire shall be those
of the other Directors subject to retirement by rotation who have
been longest in office since their last re-election or appointment
and so that as between persons who became or were last re-
elected Directors on the same day those to retire shall (unless they
otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.

Pursuant to article 112 of the articles of association, the Board
shall have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the
Board or as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director so
appointed shall hold office until the first annual general meeting of
the Company after his/her appointment and shall then be eligible
for re-election at such meeting.

In accordance with articles 108(a) and 112 of the articles of
association of the Company, Ms. Zhang Zhang and Mr. An Wen
Long will retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Company has taken out directors and officers liability
insurance to cover liabilities arising from legal action against the
Directors up to the date of this report.

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the
Directors nor the controlling Shareholder nor any of their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) that compete or may
compete with the business of the Group and any other conflicts of
interest which any such person has or may have with the Group
during the Financial Year 2024.

EMOLUMENTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements in this report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration committee will review and determine the
remuneration and compensation packages of the Directors with
reference to their responsibilities, workload, time devoted to the
Group and the performance of the Group. The Directors and other
employees who have made valuable contribution to the Group
may also receive options to be granted under the Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTEREST AND
SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO)
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to
the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

(i) Long positions in ordinary Shares

Name of director Nature of interest

FEBR

FEEaR2ZEFENRE  TEEXERMTASENKMH
NEAERERR RALBTEENHHRBES - EHA
SEEHBARERNES R EMES Tk eESRIEZTEE
FRE 2B -

%zﬁiiﬁﬂkéﬁéﬂﬁﬁ - HEEROREERZEER

RZZE-_WNE+=—A=+—H BZRAAFRFETHAER
ARA TS EAHEEEAE (TH R ESHS RPRIEDNEXVE) 2
7 HEROREEZITPEERBEFSFRBERAIEXVEET
MESHHBMERRARB Iz ERENAR (BIERIEES
RGO EMENFSHEFERRAREAZEIRAR)
BN A RRREES ARG E2GEATE 2 E LM
RS RKR  ARBELETRANES AT R 2 s
KABIT

(i) NEBERzZFR

Number of Shares
held/interested in

Percentage of
shareholding

BE RERER
BEERE ERME o)gvid 4=! BERAES K
Mr. Cheung Shek On Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 1) 39,270,000 16.23%
REBLITE REZEEE R RER (1)
Notes: st -
1. Mr. Cheung Shek On (“Mr. Cheung”) beneficially owns 100% 1. R85 % e 4 ([5R % 4 ]) B % # B Sino Continent Holdings

of the issued share capital of Sino Continent Holdings Limited
(“Sino Continent”) which in turn owns 39,270,000 ordinary shares
of the Company. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Cheung is deemed
to be interested in the same number of the Shares held by Sino
Continent.

(i)  Short positions in Shares

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, there
is no interests or short positions of the Directors and chief
executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO).
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2024,
other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company, the
following persons/entities have an interest or a short position in the
Shares or the underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in
the register of the Company required to be kept under section 336
of the SFO:

(i) Long positions in Shares:
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i) MKEozEs:

Percentage of

Number of total issued
Shares held/  Long/short share capital of
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest interested in position the Company
LERANE
¥E/BA ERITRAE
RESHE RN BEWROME HA KA BEOE L
Sino Continent Beneficial owner 39,270,000  Long 16.23%
Sino Continent EmBEAA 5
Mr. Chan Yuk Sing Interest in a controlled 39,269,000  Long 16.23%
corporation (Note 1)
BREMK L REEEEER (1) TR
Supreme Voyage Beneficial owner 39,269,000  Long 16.23%
Supreme Voyage EmEEA S
Mr. Kwok Shun Tim Interest in a controlled 37,800,000  Long 15.63%
corporation (Note 2)
BaELE REEEENER (E2) FE
Applewood Developments Limited Beneficial owner 37,800,000  Long 15.63%
Applewood Developments Limited ~— Ezi#AG A e
Ms. Luk Pui Kei Peggy (Note 3) Interest of spouse 39,270,000 Long 16.23%
e IH 22 + (B #E3) Ee B R R 53
Ms. Cho Bik Nung (Note 4) Interest of spouse 39,269,000 Long 16.23%
BERALL (MHFE4) BB R R 5o
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(i)

Percentage of

Number of total issued

Shares held/  Long/short share capital of

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest interested in position the Company
LERAN

=XV T ERITRAE

BRREH EEME RENRAEE HE %A BENEIL
Ms. Yip Nga Wan (Note 5) Interest of spouse 37,800,000  Long 15.63%

BERELL (MES5) fe B
Notes:
1. Mr. Chan Yuk Sing (“Mr. Chan”) beneficially owns 100% of the

issued share capital of Supreme Voyage Limited (“Supreme
Voyage”) which in turn owns 39,269,000 ordinary shares of
the Company. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chan is deemed to be
interested in the same number of the Shares held by Supreme
Voyage.

2. Mr. Kwok Shun Tim (“Mr. Kwok”) holds more than one-third of the
voting power at general meetings of Applewood Developments
Limited (“Applewood Developments”) which in turn owns
37,800,000 ordinary shares of the Company. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Kwok is deemed to be interested in the same number of
the Shares held by Applewood Developments.

3. Ms. Luk Pui Kei Peggy, the spouse of Mr. Cheung, is deemed
under the SFO to be interested in all the Shares in which Mr.
Cheung is deemed to be interested.

4. Ms. Cho Bik Nung, the spouse of Mr. Chan, is deemed under
the SFO to be interested in all the Shares in which Mr. Chan is
deemed to be interested.

5 Ms. Yip Nga Wan, the spouse of Mr. Kwok, is deemed under
the SFO to be interested in all the Shares in which Mr. Kwok is
deemed to be interested.

Short positions in Shares:

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, the
Directors are not aware of any other persons/entities who
had, or were deemed or taken to have any interests or short
position in any shares or underlying Shares as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Financial Year 2024, the percentage of revenue attributable
to the Group’s major customers is set out below:
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R-B-MEHREE AERESESEENRATS LR
BT -

Percentage

of revenue

HBRAE D

The largest customer BARP 20.48%
The total of the five largest customers AAEBEPFP AR 62.28%

For the Financial Year 2024, the percentage of cost of services
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and subcontractors is
set out below:

R-Z-_NFEPBRFE  AEEZE2HEE LS BEEIEHNR
BRABALLEIIWMT

Cost of services
percentage of

total cost

R 75 BR A 4G

WEAEDL

The largest supplier and subcontractor BEAHEBEYBEHE 12.60%
The total of the five largest suppliers and subcontractors AAHEERSBEER 25.10%

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company'’s share capital) had an interest in the major customers,
major suppliers and major subcontractors noted above.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no material transactions with its related
parties during the Financial Year 2024. The Directors conducted
review of the related party transactions of the Group during the
Financial Year 2024 and were not aware any transaction requiring
disclosure of connected transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that
the Company maintained the public float as required under the
Listing Rules during the Financial Year 2024 and has continued to
maintain such float as at the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Details of the corporate governance of the Company are set out in

the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 18
to 29 of this report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group and its activities are subject to requirements under
various laws. The laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Group include, among others, Air Pollution Control
Ordinance (Chapter 311 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Air Pollution
Control (Non-road Mobile Machinery) (Emission) Regulation
(Chapter 311Z of the Laws of Hong Kong), Noise Control
Ordinance (Chapter 400 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Water
Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 358 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and Public Health and Municipal Services Ordinance
(Chapter 132 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Group recognises
the importance of environmental protection and has implemented
various environmental protection measures in order to minimise
the operation impact on the environment and natural resources.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATION

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief,
having made all reasonable enquiries, the Group has complied in
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the business and operation of the Company
and its subsidiaries during the Financial Year 2024.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the memorandum and article of association of the
Company, the Directors and other officers, for the time being
acting in relation to the affairs of the Company, shall be indemnified
out of the assets the Company against all losses or liabilities
incurred or sustained by his/her as a Director, or other officer of the
Company in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal in
which judgement is given in his favour, or in which he is acquitted.
Such permitted indemnity provision is currently in force and was in
force throughout the Financial Year 2024.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or in existence during the Financial Year 2024.

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB”) was appointed by
the Directors as the auditors of the Company. HLB will retire,
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming AGM. A resolution for their re-appointment as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM. The
consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year 2024 have
been audited by HLB.

By Order of the Board
Cheung Shek On
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2025
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HLB &

TO THE MEMBERS OF
KINGLAND GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kingland
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 70 to 123,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2024 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Audiitors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

HEEHF A RN E
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

Independent Auditors’ Report
B AR S

31/F, Gloucester Tower & &

The Landmark IR

11 Pedder Street BITH115E

Central EHES

Hong Kong EELTITRE31E
BEBREEZERERAT

H 4 BRI
(RAESHELMALNERLA)

=R

EEEERHINETOE 123 ARBMERZERERAR (ER
ADREMBRAR (REIEXE]) NEAMBERER  Z5H5EA
BBERREFER-—F_NEFT=-A=1— EIEI’Jﬁ B IR R
BHEZALFENGARaREM2AKER  RAgDE
PRRGEHERER M&A?QHMME%%W? BEEARE
SABRER -

EERR GAMBRRCORETEETNAE (FE ST
AEDBROGNEEVBHREEN(FEMBRESEND EEM
APHRE EERER_Z-_NFE+ A=+ ANGEANK
HK/RLA&HétiZZHJtirE’]%%é-\lﬂﬁxﬁi,%&%?\éﬁﬁmi'
YEEBRBEBRAGRINEEZRZBRE -

ERNER

EEREFBGIMASRMANETBEER ([FBETER])
ETEZ EZFEUNT  BFNATESFTHNRENEEH
Efﬁ%%f?%ﬁéﬁiﬁﬁf& FARER B ] — i — */Ffﬁu o IRIE

Bt AENEXS nfﬁfﬁfﬁff?gﬂ((#@w) Sxhva
)\50 E\K@ IEL{E#E‘JEﬁﬁﬁﬁLﬁfE & $H1§’3§
S ENER B R B AT ENERE RIRHER -

SBREEEZERARAR —ZONFEERS

65



66

Independent Auditors’ Report
B XS AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

How our audit addressed the key
Key audit matters audit matters
Recognition of revenue and costs from construction contracts
and contract assets
Refer to notes 5 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

We identified recognition
of revenue and costs from
construction contracts and
contract assets as a key
audit matter as significant
management’s estimations e
and judgements are involved

in the determination of the
outcome of construction
contracts and the progress
towards completion of e
construction works.

Our audit procedures in relation to
recognition of revenue and costs from
construction contracts and contract
assets mainly included:

Reviewing the contract sum and
related costs to respective signed
contracts and construction progress
schedules prepared by management;

Understanding from management
about how the construction progress
schedules were prepared and
the respective progress towards
completion of construction works
were determined;

e FEvaluating the reasonableness of
progress towards completion of
construction works by obtaining the
certificates issued by customers or
payment applications;

e Testing the actual costs incurred on
construction works; and

e Assessing the appropriateness and

adequate of the disclosures made in
the consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key
Key audit matters audit matters
Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets
Refer to notes 17 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

We identified impairment
assessment of trade

Our audit procedures in relation to
impairment of trade receivables and
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receivables and contract
assets as a key audit matter
due to its significance to
the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and
management’s estimate
in evaluating the expected
credit losses of the trade
receivables and contract
assets.

contract assets mainly included:

Obtaining an understanding on
how the management assess the
expected credit losses for trade
receivables and contract assets;

Testing the integrity of information
used by management for the
assessment, including ageing analysis
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REHEE 5 WA Rk
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RIEMEWEENERERRER:

i3 38 1 o A o #5118 B AT
B SO HETTEL B - AR AROR B IR
EBRHEMAENNTEYE B

of trade receivables, on a sample
basis, by comparing individual items
in the analysis with the relevant
underlying documents;

e Evaluating the reasonableness of
management assessment on ECL
by reviewing historical repayment
records on a sample basis and
the forward-looking information
management has taken into account;
and

e Re-performing the calculation of the
loss allowance as at 31 December
2024 based on the Group’s ECL
allowance policies.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon (the “Other information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the Other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion, solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the Group
as a basis for forming an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and review of the audit work performed for
purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Mr. Lo Kin Kei.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lo Kin Kei
Practising Certificate Number: PO6413

Hong Kong, 25 March 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meBRERAEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December2024 #HZE—Z W&+ _A=+—HIFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

(Provision for)/reversal of impairment losses on
financial assets and contract assets

Administrative and other operating expenses

Operating gain
Finance costs

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year attributable
to owners of the Company

Basic and diluted earnings per share

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Wz

HERA

EH

H A WA R ez

EREERSHNEERERE
(@) /#m

TR REMEERX

BN
BEMA
B P15 3% A A
FR1SELR X

RRRFEEABEFERNENR
2HE W EAE

Kingland Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024
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2024 2023

—ESE-E —E-=F

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B = FET FHET
B 97,127 121,186
(65,226) (91,726)

31,901 29,460

5 2,151 682
(3,731) 778
(28,844) (28,490)

1,477 2,430
6 (982) (1,112

7 495 1,318
10 - =
495 1,318

HK cents HK cents

AL AL

11 0.20 0.57
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
rE AR

As at 31 December 2024 W=ZT=WFE+=—A=+—H

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Current assets

Contract assets

Trade and other receivables
Pledged bank deposits
Cash and bank balances

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Capital and reserves

Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Other non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities

Deferred income

Current liabilities

Bank overdrafts
Borrowings

Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities

Deferred income
Amounts due to directors

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities
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The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 March 2025

and signed on its behalf by:

Cheung Shek On
KRB
Director

EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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2024 2023
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Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHERT FHET
13 3,453 4,611
14 7,057 8,357
10,510 12,968

16 15,557 16,762
17 12,061 15,094
18 15,259 14,757
18 8,520 11,882
51,397 58,495

61,907 71,463

19 12,096 12,096
11,784 11,289

23,880 23,385

690 742

23 1,800 3,845
24 650 =
3,140 4,587

18 9,847 9,651
22 977 2,732
26 16,674 23,245
23 4,477 4,250
24 300 -
27 2,612 3,613
34,887 43,491

38,027 48,078

61,907 71,463

16,510 15,004

27,020 27,972
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
oY e I E

For the year ended 31 December2024 #HZE—Z W&+ _A=+—HIFE

Share Share Merger Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve losses equity
R R EE ROHEE 2 ER R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET THT THT THT
(Note 19) (Note 20) (Note 20)
(P55 19) GER) (K#5E20)
Balance at 1 January 2023 R-E-_=F—Hf—H
et 8,064 64,575 16,313 (80,689) 8,263
Profit and total comprehensive income  EREFI & 2 H IR A8
for the year - - - 1,318 1,318
Issue of shares in respect of rights issue &t A% %17 A& 7 4,032 10,887 = = 14,919
Share issuance cost of rights issue  HLARFIARAB{TR A
(Note 19(0) (P 3 19()) - (1,115) - - (1,115)
Balance at 31 December 2023 RZZ==F
+TZAZT—BREH 12,096 74,347 16,313 (79,371) 23,385
Profit and total comprehensive income  FREFI R 2 IR B
for the year - - - 495 495
Balance at 31 December 2024 RZB-mE
+=A=+-BHES 12,006 74,347 16,313 (78,876) 23,880
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEMIMI R Z SR AV B MR AR BD -

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SGEHESRER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE-_T_WF+_A=+—HIFE

2024 2023
—E-_ME —EB-=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ks FERT FHET
Cash flows from operating activities RETEHMBRERE
Net cash generated from operations LEFTEMIR e /F5E 28 6,636 4,095
Net cash generated from operating activities K& EEFTEE S EEHE 6,636 4,095
Cash flows from investing activities RETBMEBEESRE
Interest received B FIE 814 329
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWME  WERZE (2,610) (861)
Payments for right-for-use assets AR ERMNR (22) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME BEMZEAENE
equipment 952 24
Net cash used in investing activities BRETEMARSFE (866) (508)
Cash flows from financing activities METHMEBELSRE
Increase in pledged bank deposit B IR ERITF ZIE A0 (502) (187)
Interest paid BEATF & (552) (628)
Decrease in amounts due to directors JE A~ 2 S5 SR TE R (1,001) (349)
Lease payment HERK
— Capital elements —AREEH (5,088) (4,222)
— Interest elements —FEEH (430) (442)
Proceeds from issue of shares in respect of MERBEITRD TS RIE
rights issue = 14,919
Share issuance costs IR 17 B TR A o (1,115)
Repayment of borrowings BEEER (1,755) (3,175)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BMEEE (FTA), FEREBE
financing activities (9,328) 4,801
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRESEEYWORL) 5
cash equivalents FE (3,558) 8,388
Cash and cash equivalents at the FUESRESZEEY
beginning of year 2,231 (6,157)
(Bank overdrafts)/cash and cash equivalents F£X (B1T7EX%) BERRLE
at the end of year By (1,327) 2,231
Analysis of (bank overdrafts)/cash and cash (R1TEX) RERREZEY
equivalents Bk
Pledged bank deposit and BEEARITERARE S
cash and bank balances MR1THE R 18 23,779 26,639
Less: pledged bank deposit B BEARITER (15,259) (14,757)
Less: bank overdrafts B RITIE X (9,847) (9,651)
(Bank overdrafts)/cash and cash equivalents (RITEX) BReRASEEY (1,327) 2,231
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BERT P SE A Z SR 6 M IS MR M AR E 5 ©

consolidated financial statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION

Kingland Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5 January 2015
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and its shares have
been listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 16
December 2016.

The Company’s shares are currently listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Dealings in the shares on the
Main Board commenced on 12 June 2018 pursuant to the
approval granted by the Stock Exchange for the transfer of
listing of the shares from the GEM to the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

The address of the Company’s registered office is
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman Islands and the
Company’s principal place of business is Flat B, G/F., Fu
Hop Factory Building, 209 and 211 Wai Yip Street, Kwun
Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
is principally engaged in the provision of concrete
demolition services in Hong Kong and Macau mainly as a
subcontractor.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company, and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except otherwise indicated.

These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 March
2025.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December2024 #HZE—Z W&+ _A=+—HIFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
as otherwise stated in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with HKFRSs requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the accounting policies of the
Group.

2.2. Changes in accounting policies

2.2.1 Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied
the following amendments to HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2024 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial

statements:
Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sale and
HKFRS 16 Leaseback
Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as
HKAS 1 Current or Non-current and
related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)
Amendments to Non-current Liabilities with
HKAS 1 Covenants
Amendments to Supplier Finance Arrangements
HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

The application of the amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

e R R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE-_T_WF+_A=+—HIFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December2024 #HZE—Z W&+ _A=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. HAEEEREARGHEEER (FH)
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

22 EFHREEE(E)
2.2.2 BAEME K ELBIRTET RAEEET BB

2.2. Changes in accounting policies (continued)
2.2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to Amendments to the

HKFRS 9 and Classification and
HKFRS 7 Measurement of Financial
Instruments?®

Amendments to  Sale or Contribution of
HKFRS 10 and  Assets between an
HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate

e EA)
AR SR T AT 3 2 AR M 1B 8 R AR
BVHTET RS ERT B R MBS M E LR

ERUBRE ERMIANSREE (BT
RRIFEIHE R x)e
ERUBRE
RERIET R
CHEN)

BEMBREE REFLEEBELARAZED
BIE 105 R XHzEEHERTE
BB EER

or Joint Venture' 285
(1BFTA)

Amendments to  Annual Improvements to ERVBMEE BAMBHREENSHELR
HKFRS HKFRS Accounting Alg st LAl FREBCES 11
Accounting Standards Volume 112 (1BFTAR)

Standards
Amendments to  Lack of Exchangeability? BERASHENE BRZARLBE?
HKAS 21 215% (BRI AR)
HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure BRUBREE HBBRRO27IRKEE
in Financial Statements* BI55185%
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after g FMFE H B 3L L 18 B 26 19 2 BT 454 o
a date to be determined.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 2 RZFZHF—HA—HILUE I EEZHE
1 January 2025. 3L o
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after & RZFZNF—H— AR BB FEERR
1 January 2026. ERL o
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after = REFEZ+F—A—HIEUERBEFRELR
1 January 2027. £ e

Except for the new and amendments to
HKFRSs mentioned below, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of all
other new and amendments to HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

BT DI AT RSB ET BB M B S 2 RIS -
ARBEZAHAEAHBEMIET REEFT
FEEVBHRELENETIERA LKL EE
MBRREEBATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.2. Changes in accounting policies (continued)
2.2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure
in Financial Statements, which sets out
requirements on presentation and disclosures
in financial statements, will replace HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements. This
new HKFRS Accounting Standard, while
carrying forward many of the requirements
in HKAS 1, introduces new requirements
to present specified categories and defined
subtotals in the statement of profit or loss;
provide disclosures on management-
defined performance measures in the notes
to the financial statements and improve
aggregation and disaggregation of information
to be disclosed in the financial statements.
In addition, some HKAS 1 paragraphs have
been moved to HKAS 8 and HKFRS 7. Minor
amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash
Flows and HKAS 33 Earnings per Share are
also made.

HKFRS 18, and amendments to other
standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with
early application permitted. The application
of the new standard is expected to affect
the presentation of the statement of profit
or loss and disclosures in the future financial
statements. The Group is in the process of
assessing the detailed impact of HKFRS 18 on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

e R R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE-_T_WF+_A=+—HIFE

EHEERBEASHBREESN (H)

22 EFREEE(E)
2.2.2 BRAEMEREKELBIRTET RAEEET BB

REER (B
EEPBREENE18RUBRRNEIR
mE

BB B REERNFE 18RI B MRNZED R
REHIN M BRKR 22 RBRERTE @ 5
REBGFEUFIRUBERRZED - K
M BRYBRE LG ENETERE
SR EABEIRPRREREZRE - 5| AR
BRKRP 2R BES DT ZHRE
HHBBRRMETTEREREZRRTER
W B R BCER P B RR T TIE 2 A6
RDEER - o BERGHEREIRZ
BOREZCBEEBERE ST EANFERLEE
MBmEEBETR - BEGHLERETR
ReRBREERB G EREBRTRATN
IRMEHABIERT

P HREERNFE 185 R A ER 2 EF]
AR —FE_tF— A - BHAERABZF
EHMAEN  TAFRFER - EAHEL
UM ETERER 22T A MK B R
RZPE - AEBLEEFHBEEMBEREE
A 18 AR EiR A MR 2 AR E -

SBREEEZERARAR —ZONFEERS

72



78

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December2024 #HZE—Z W&+ _A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.3

2.4

2.5

Principles of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct to activities of the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision maker. The chief
operating decision maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments, has been identified as the
executive directors that makes strategic decisions.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024

EHEERBEASHBEESN (H)

23

2.4

25

?ﬁ%lﬁiﬁﬂ

oA

W% T?’%Zliﬁlﬁﬁ%*ﬁi HEZMEER (B
EHEBER)  EASKERB2EEEZ EB MR

EI%%;%T“M& LBERNEBETEE %‘“
Ez Ny EZEnR  AEERAEHEE
MBAREEGEEREAEEE AEEEFA AR
WELIEEHEATBEA AR -

AEERBEBEHEBEBEHAR -

AEBARRMR S XHEHREARER IS T A
HiF - RERBBENTUANE  EZXZARER
TEEBEEHTRERRI - HEQRNEHK
RERFERELWE  URREREERANEE
RIF—He

B MBHE

RHTE R B ZRE TIRKANRREAR - RAE
FEIRENEZREERAR - ARAIRE WIS RER
FOAM BRI B R R NEEAR -

i B SR IB MY B A R A B RS IR M 2 E W A 42
# &%_ﬁﬁ%#ﬁi’%qﬂE’J&ﬁﬁ%@@ﬁi@%ﬂi&ﬁ@
AFEE (BEBE) MR MBREAEEE - AN
LIﬁZ'JEWﬁJ% AlZRENBRER  ARZSREE
TTRERIR

p-=
e 2oy E A E ELEREERED
§5( o 1l JE B S \i&%mﬁ’]iﬂﬁ%%%{%ﬁ“«
KE BEORBERKTELEEDBRA -

ﬁ’x
& &b
R —

Dﬂ?”m”ﬂﬂkﬁ»
#Hmé

NY



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.6 Foreign currency translation

)

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rates, are generally recognised in
profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on a net basis.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the end
of that reporting period;

o income and expenses for each
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

° all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.
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For the year ended 31 December2024 #HZE—Z W&+ _A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replace. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives or lease term,
where applicable, as follows:

— Plant and machinery 25%
— Furniture and fixtures Over shorter of lease

term or 20%
— Office equipment 20%
— Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These
are included in the profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE-_T_WF+_A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

EHEERBEASHBREESN (H)

(CONTINUED)

2.9 Financial assets 29 SREE
i Classification () T

The Group classifies its financial assets in the REBZRA T ERNEeREEETHE

following measurement categories:

. those to be measured subsequently . HERATEGIAEMEZEKA ([HE
at fair value (either through other MEEWALD S ABR)FTENEF
comprehensive income (“OCI”), or BE R
through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised . REERKAHENEREE -
cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s ZOBEEAREREESREENERER

business model for managing the financial RIS REME LMER -

assets and the contractual terms of the cash

flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and HRAATEFENEE  HABEBK AR

losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or mREMEEBA c HRIWIEFIEEBHE

OCI. For investments in equity instruments that HTAKREMS  HEBUARAEEEYS

are not held for trading, this will depend on ERRESEL T REAEREMSERZT

whether the Group has made an irrevocable BRAFEFAEMEERA (HZRFEE
election at the time of initial recognition to AEMEEEAL AR -

account for the equity investment at fair

value through other comprehensive income

(FVOC).

The Group reclassifies debt investments EREEERRSEENEBREAREEZ (L

when and only when its business model for B AEESTSUHEBREETEN 8 -

managing those assets changes.
(i) Recognition and derecognition (i) TERRAL IR

Regular way purchases and sales of financial CRHMEENEEBARTEERSAER -
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date RPAEFAEBEREBEXILEETHEEE
on which the Group commits to purchase HeZtemEERRRRENEMNER
or sell the asset. Financial assets are BB RAAEECEYE L BRNT
derecognised when the rights to receive cash BREBABHNEEN  SREERNLIER -
flows from the financial assets have expired

or have been transferred and the Group has

transferred substantially all the risks and

rewards of ownership.

(i) Measurement (i)  ATE

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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For the year ended 31 December2024 #HZE—Z W&+ _A=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Financial assets (continued)
(i) Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

. Amortised cost: Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss
and presented in other gains/(losses)
together with foreign exchange gains
and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

o FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI except
for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in profit or loss. When
the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised
in other gains/(losses). Interest income
from these financial assets is included
in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in other
gains/(losses), and impairment expenses
are presented as separate line item in
the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

. FVPL: Assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit
or loss and presented net within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which it
arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Financial assets (continued)

()

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking
basis the expected credit losses associated
with its debt instruments carried at amortised
cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk (i.e. 30 days
past due).

For trade receivables and contract assets,
the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables and
contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables and contract assets have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The
contract assets relate to unbilled work in
progress and have substantially the same risk
characteristics as the trade receivables for
the same types of contracts. The Group has
therefore concluded that the expected loss
rates for trade receivables are a reasonable
approximation of the loss rates for the contract
assets.

Impairment on other receivables is measured
as either 12-month expected credit losses or
lifetime expected credit loss, depending on
whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. If a
significant increase in credit risk of a receivable
has occurred since initial recognition, then
impairment is measured as lifetime expected
credit losses.

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of, a financial asset and
whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout
each reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It
considers available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

o actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant change to the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligations

o actual or expected significant changes
in the operating results of the debtors

()
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For the year ended 31 December2024 #HZE—Z W&+ _A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.9

Financial assets (continued)
(iv)  Impairment (continued)

o significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the
debtors, including changes in the
payment status of debtors in the Group
and historical credit loss experience

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
contractual payments are 365 days past due.
The Group has rebutted the 90 days past due
presumption of default based on reasonable
and supportable information, including the
Group’s credit risk control practices and the
historical recovery rate of financial assets over
90 days past due. However, the Group may
also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates
that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before
taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group.

A financial asset is credit impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred or when
a debtor fails to make contractual payments
more than 365 days past due.

2.10 Offsetting of financial instruments

2.1

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade receivables is expected
in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the trade receivables with the objective of collecting
the contractual cash flows using the effective interest
method and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method
less provision for impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

Trade receivables (continued)

When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account for trade
receivables. Trade receivables are written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation
of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a
debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against credit impairment loss in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and bank overdrafts (if any).

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payable

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowing and borrowing costs

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liabilities for at least 12 months after
the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December2024 #HZE—Z W&+ _A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.15

2.16

Borrowing and borrowing costs (continued)
General and specific borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to complete
and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of each reporting period in the countries
where the Group operates and generates taxable
income. Management periodically evaluate positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.16

2.17

Current and deferred income tax (continued)
Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is not probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 requirements to the lease liabilities
and the related assets separately. The Group
recognises a deferred tax asset related to lease
liabilities to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised and deferred tax
liability for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Employee benefits

) Retirement benefits
The Group operates a defined contribution
plan and pays contributions to a privately
administered pension insurance plan on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

For LSP obligation, the Group accounts for
the employer MPF contributions expected to
be offset as a deemed employee contribution
towards the LSP obligation in terms of HKAS
19.93(a) and it is measured on a net basis.
The estimated amount of future benefit is
determined after deducting the negative
service cost arising from the accrued benefits
derived from the Group’s MPF contributions
that have been vested with employees, which
are deemed to be contributions from the
relevant employees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December2024 #HZE—Z W&+ _A=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.17 Employee benefits (continued)
(i) Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an
expense for bonuses when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and
a reliable estimate of such obligation can be
made.

2.18 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation and
the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are
not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.19

2.20

Contingent liabilities and continent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resource will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs
so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised
as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain events not wholly within the control of
the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue
is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance as the Group performs;

. the Group’s performance creates and
enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December2024 #HZE—Z W&+ _A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.20 Revenue recognition (continued)

2.21

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for services that the Group
has transferred to a customer that is not unconditional.
It is assessed for impairment in accordance with
HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of
that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a
contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.

Revenue from construction contracts is described
in the accounting policy on construction contracts
below.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a time basis using the effective interest method,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Construction contracts

A contract with a customer is classified by the
Group as a construction contract when the contract
relates to construction work under the control of the
customer and therefore the Group’s construction
activities create or enhance an asset under the
customer’s control.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
reasonably measured, revenue from the contract is
recognised progressively over time using the output
method, based on direct measurement of the value
of contract work performed, provided that the value
of contract work performed can be measured reliably.
The value of contract work performed is measured
according to the completion of specific detailed
components as set out in the contract. Variations in
contract work are recognised as contract revenue to
the extent that the modification has been approved
by the parties to the contracts and it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.

When the outcome of the contract cannot be
reasonably measured, revenue is recognised only
to the extent of contract costs incurred that are
expected to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.21

2.22

2.23

Construction contracts (continued)

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration for
the effects of the time value of money if the timing
of payments agreed (either explicitly or implicitly)
provides the customer or the Group with a significant
benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services
to the customer. In those circumstances, the contract
contains a significant financing component. A
significant financing component may exist regardless
of whether the promise of financing is explicitly stated
in the contract or implied by the payment terms
agreed to by the parties to the contract.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of
machinery are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred income and they are credited to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of
the related assets.

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

The Group leases various office premises, plant and
machinery and motor vehicles. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of 24 to 60 months.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests in
the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.
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For the year ended 31 December2024 #HZE—Z W&+ _A=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.23 Leases (continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as
a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing
was received,

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a
risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group, which does not have
recent third party financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.

Payments associated with short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments).

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

Each lease payments are allocated between the
liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged
to consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income over the lease period so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability and any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date. The right- of-use asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life
and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE-_T_WF+_A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. HAEEEREAREGHEEER (E)
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

224 HBEREYN

2.24 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a
financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued.
The liability is initially measured at fair value and
subsequently at the higher of:

o the amount determined in accordance with the
expected credit loss model under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles
of HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined
based on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required
under the debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee, or the
estimated amount that would be payable to a third
party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other
payables of associates are provided for no
compensation, the fair values are accounted for as
contributions and recognised as part of the cost of
the investment.
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For the year ended 31 December2024 #HZE—Z W&+ _A=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.25 Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control of the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

or

(o)  the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members
of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);

(iif) the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

v) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

(vij  the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with
the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities exposed it to a variety of
financial risks: interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

(@  Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Group’s interest-bearing financial assets and
financial liabilities. The Group are exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
variable-rates bank balances, bank overdrafts
and bank borrowing and fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rates bank deposits,
other borrowings and lease liabilities. The
directors of the Company continue to monitor
the interest rate exposure of the Group.

The fixed rate instruments of the Group are
insensitive to any change in market interest
rates.

Management does not anticipate significant
impact to interest-bearing assets resulted from
the changes in interest rates, because the
interest rates of bank balances are relatively
low and not expected to change significantly.

The Group consider the cash flow interest rate
risk relating to its variable-rate bank overdrafts
and bank borrowing is insignificant.

The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.

e R R
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For the year ended 31 December2024 #HZE—Z W&+ _A=+—HIFE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

@

®)

()

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate bank borrowing and
bank overdrafts. A 100 basis point increase
or decrease is used which represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. If interest
rates had been 100 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s loss for the year
ended 31 December 2024 would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$96,000 (2023:
HK$117,000).

No sensitivity analysis has been prepared
for the exposure to interest rate risk on the
Group’s bank balances and deposit as the
directors of the Company consider that the
exposure is minimal.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Macau and
Hong Kong with most of the Group’s monetary
assets, liabilities and transactions principally
denominated in HK$ and Macau Pataca
(“MOP”). The Group is exposed to currency
risk arising from currency exposures primarily
with respect to MOP, mainly attributable to
the exposure on outstanding receivables and
payables denominated in MOP.

Most of the MOP denominated monetary
assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting
period are held under the Group’s subsidiary
in Macau. As MOP is pegged to HKS, the
management of the Group consider that the
foreign currency risk is insignificant, and hence
they do not engage in any hedging activity.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises mainly from contract assets,
trade and other receivables, pledged bank
deposit and cash and bank balances. The
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in the event of the counterparties’ failure to
perform their obligations as at the reporting
dates in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

The Group’s trade receivables and contract
assets are subject to the expected credit loss
model.

While cash and cash equivalents, other
receivables and deposits are also subject to
the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9,
the identified impairment loss was immaterial
because the counterparties are reputable.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE-_T_WF+_A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3. HBHEBRTEE
3.1  Financial risk factors (continued) 31 HMERBEZ(H)
Credit risk (Continueq) © 1EEEE(Z
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified REBEEREBVBREEREIRELT
approach to measure expected credit losses FUREHEIRRRBERANEEEAS
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance R HEERETERAEEREE -
for all trade receivables and contract assets.
To measure the expected credit losses, RIEEHEESE BZEBFBEREH
trade receivables and contract assets have BEEDBRBEEBENEERREI RGBS
been grouped based on shared credit risk N -ANEEHRBEANNE ZEKRFIEA
characteristics and the days past due. The BERBARMRRER Bt NEBER
contract assets have substantially the same B EBHRKRENTBHEERRENEE
risk characteristics as the trade receivables for WEBENEEALUE -
the same types of contracts. The Group has
therefore concluded that the expected loss
rates for trade receivables are a reasonable
approximation of the loss rates for the contract
assets.
The expected loss rates are based on the TEEAB BRI EN 1218 A B A 88 E 2
payment profiles of sales over a period of MR EEEENES EEEIE - BELEE
12 months and the corresponding historical EEERARURREER P EE B KFKE
credit losses experienced within this period. NN EBSERZNE R RATEEER -
The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect AEECHANEBEEFHNRER - FEXKX
current and forward-looking information on FomATEREHS HFAENESRBL
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability EpNC NI A E B AN R 3t =
of the customers to settle the receivables. REMEARKEERE  WIREZEEAEZMNTEH
The Group has identified payment pattern, FEREAERELBEREX -
creditworthiness, the past collection history of
each customer, the probability of insolvency
or significant financial difficulties of the
counterparty and default or significant delay
in payments to be most relevant factors, and
accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates
based on expected changes in these factors.
The loss allowance for trade receivables and BEZRBFERENEENBEREETN
contract assets were determined as follows: T
11030 31t0 90 91 to 365 Over 365
days days days days
Current past due past due past due past due Total
oy o as ki
B 12300 31£90H 9123650 365A 5L @i
31 December 2024 —ECMmE
+ZA=1+-H
Expected loss rate AHEER 0.22% 0.26% 0.87% 9.06% 100%
Gross carrying amount - BEAE-ZHEWE
trade receivables (HK§'000)  (Fi&70) 2,737 1,989 889 543 5331 11,489
(Gross carrying amount - BERE-GNEE
contract assets (HK$'000) (F&) 15,501 - - - 2,304 17,895
Loss allowance (HK$'000) BERE(TET) 40 5 8 49 7,635 7,737
SBREBZERERAT T NFFERS
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For the year ended 31 December2024 #HZE—Z W&+ _A=+—HIFE
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3. BBEABREE(H)
3.1  Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MERBREZ(H)
(c)  Credit risk (continued) © 1EEEE(Z
11030 311090 9110 365 Qver 365
days days days days
Current past due past due past due past due Total
ol ag ag ki
& 1£30H 31290H 9123650 3B5AME FHY
31 December 2023 ot S
+=ZA=1+-8
Expected loss rate AHEER 0.33% 0.42% 0.87% 12.95% 100%
Gross carrying amount - BERE-ZSEWE
trade receivables (HK$'000) (Fi#) 2,325 4,236 2,286 139 5,155 14,14
(Gross carrying amount - BERE-GNEE
contract assets (HK$'000) (F#) 16,816 - - - 3,168 19,984
Loss allowance (HK$'000) BERE(TET) 63 18 20 18 8,323 8,442
The closing loss allowance for trade receivables BEHRWHERGHNEEN _T-_MFR=-
and contract assets as at 31 December To=F+ A=+ HMBREERESR
2024 and 2023 reconcile to the opening loss BRIV E B E BRI T -
allowance are as follows:
Trade Trade Contract Contract
receivables receivables assets assets
Life-time ECL Life-time ECL Life-time ECL Life-time ECL
(not credit (credit (not credit (credit
impaired) impaired) impaired) impaired)
g2 EWHIE EHEE
2HEY BESEWNRE 2HITEH BREE
FEFR 2HREH FEER 2HAH
(TEEE EEE#E (EEEE FEEEE
A E) (EEHE) i) (FERME)
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET
Opening loss allowance at RZZE-=F—HF—A®
1 January 2023 HYEEEE 301 5,317 282 3,320
Transfer to credit impaired EEREEZERE (36) 36 = -
Decrease in loss allowance FARBRERNER
recognised in profit or loss BERD
during the year (200) (198) (228) (152)
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F
+=ZA=+—"8 65 5,155 54 3,168
Transfer to credit impaired BREEEERE - - () 4
Increase/(decrease) in loss FARERERNER
allowance recognised in profit BEEm/ R
or loss during the year 3,691 (16) 53
Written off as uncollectible 85 A7~ AT Uk [e] - (3,515) - (921)
At 31 December 2024 RZE-OF
+=-A=+—"8 68 5,331 34 2,304
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE-_T_WF+_A=+—HIFE

3. HBEEBREE(H)

3.1  Financial risk factors (continued) 31 HMERBEZ(H)
(c)  Credit risk (continued) © 1EEEE(Z
As at 31 December 2024, no customer (2023: RZZE-_WEF+—A=+—0 BHEREF
no customer) which individually contributed ZEI=F BERP) ENEIAEENE
over 10% of the Group’s trade and other SREMERREARGHNEEGRBER
receivables and contract assets. 10% -
Other than concentration of credit risk on BREXHEBRNE S REMERGRIBNLRE
trade and other receivables and contract HNEERTFHIR EXFERENABEREE
assets disclosed above and liquid funds which ARG RFBRENRTHORBDESHEER
are deposited with banks with sound credit BEFI AEBTEFMEMEERRSE
ratings or good reputation as disclose above, RERER -
the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk.
(@  Liquidity risk @ TEBELEE
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor AEBNBREATHEERRERBHAORE
current and expected liquidity requirements B2FE R THRRAEEEBENNER & H
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves H UWENEESBERBRBHEST K -&
of cash to meet their liquidity requirements in BEEE AREASEBERARNUBHE R
the short and long term. Management believes ReFEYVRELERMES HHMEERX
there is no significant liquidity risk as the mENE SRR -
Group has sufficient financial cash and cash
equivalents to fund their operations.
The following table details the remaining THRAMFEENEHEBENSREHRD
contractual maturities at the end of each BTETOREER  DIRFTORBRBR SR
reporting period of the Group’s financial E(BREFERATHONES (BEAZE) SRS
liabilities, which are based on contractual R EIEAR R EMA ST ) RAEE
undiscounted cash flows (including interest AN RFERBTE
payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on current rates at the end
of each reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group may be required to pay:
On demand Total Total
Effective or within Between Between  undiscounted carrying
interest rate oneyear  1to2years  2to5years cash flow amount
RERS FEERRS
BRFE -FR 1228 225% RERE BEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T
At31December2024  R-ZE-ME
+=A=t-8
Trade and other payables & 5 R EfhfE( FE - 16,674 S S 16,674 16,674
Amounts due to directors ~ [EHEEFE - 2,612 - - 2,612 2,612
Bank overdrafts RITEY 4.9% 9,847 - - 9,847 9,847
Lease liabilities HEaE 5.4% 4,731 946 1,008 6,685 6,277
Borrowings BE 3.0% 917 - - 917 977
34,841 946 1,008 36,795 36,387
At31December2028  R=-B-Zf
t=A=1-H
Trade and other payables &5 R £ R 78 - 23,245 - - 23,245 23,245
Amounts due to directors BN ZEZ B - 3,613 - - 3,613 3,613
Bank overdrafts ROEX 4.9% 9,651 - - 9,651 9,651
Lease liabilities HERE 5.3% 4,569 3,865 80 8,514 8,095
Borrowings B8 4.6% 2,782 - - 2,732 2,732
43,810 3,865 80 47,755 47,336

SBREEEZERARAR —ZONFEERS
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For the year ended 31 December2024 #HZE—Z W&+ _A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3. BBEABREE(H)
3.1  Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MERBREZ(H)
(@  Liquidity risk (continued) @ IBELEE(E
Bank loans with a repayment on demand BEBREZREEBRFIORITE R A Ll
clause are included in the “on demand or BN RERSE—FAIHRA - R =
within one year” time band in the above T_NEFT A=+ —H  ZERTEXKY
maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2024, BREAAENAI7T7,0008 T (ZTE-_=F:
the aggregate carrying amounts of these 2,732,000 ) - EREAEBH BN
bank loans amounting to approximately ERERARITIRAILITHEBIGEZE KA
HK$977,000 (2023: HK$2,732,000). Taking KER BERERAZSERTENBRRE
into account the Group’s financial position, RipEAMBERSERER  SHEFBHY
the management does not believe that it is RT%*:
probable that the banks will exercise their
discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The management believes that
such bank loans will be repaid in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan agreements, details of which are set
out in the table below:
Maturity Analysis - Bank loans with a Ao -—RERSERABREREERK
repayment on demand clause based on RHRITER
scheduled repayments
Total
Less than undiscounted Carrying
1 year 1-2 years 2-5years  Over5years cash flow amount
RERRE
SME 122F 2E5% BB5E REAH RE®
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
31 December 2024 —E-ME
+=A=1+-H 977 - - - 977 977
31 December 2023 it St 3
+=A=+-8 1,824 994 - - 2,818 2,732

Kingland Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders, to support the Group’s
stability and growth; to earn a margin commensurate
with the level of business and market risks in the
Group’s operations and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares, obtain new borrowings or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as the total loans
and borrowings and lease liabilities as at each year
end divided by the total equity as at each year end.

The gearing ratios of the Group are as follows:

Total debt B4
Total equity e 48
Gearing ratio B

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the
consolidated financial statements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are addressed below.

(a)

Impairment of financial assets and contract
assets

The loss allowances for financial assets and
contract assets are based on assumptions about
risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group
uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the
end of each reporting period.

4]
o B

4
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32 HBAFXEHE

ZIS'?E“@E’JQZK“@E?EEE@E%BEK‘ﬁI P
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MRS MERREEE S  BITHKR - REH
BRI EEENRKER -

AEENBBELREREER - W RIEBRNEF
FEEE@Z@EM BERHEAERUINSFERN
B E
AEENBELENAT :
2024 2023
—E-mEF —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
17,101 20,478
23,880 23,385
72% 88%
BAG AT RAE
REGRAMBRERMANGT A EWFET G I
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE-—T-—W&+-A=+—ALLFE

4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Progress towards of completion of construction
contracts
The Group recognises its contract revenue over
time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of a performance obligation of the end of
the reporting period, measured based on the surveys
of work performed to date of the individual contract
of construction works relative to total contract value.
Because of the nature of the activity undertaken in
construction contracts, the date at which the contract
activity is entered into and the date when the activity
is completed usually fall into different accounting
period. The Group reviews and revises the estimates
of contract revenue, contract costs and variation
orders prepared for each construction contract as the
contract progresses. Management regularly reviews
the progress of the contracts and the corresponding
costs of the contract revenue.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS AND
SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue and other income and gains recognised during the
year are as follows:

1§

Revenue
Provision of concrete demolition services

4.

5.

RO R T H RS

Other income and gains Hi W A K Wz
Sundry income MIERA
Interest income FEMRA
Government grant BT 78 8D

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment H & #1% -

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
recognised government grants of HK$250,000 (2023:
HK$80,000) relating to the purchase of machinery in
respect of The Construction Innovation and Technology
Fund supported by the Hong Kong Government. All grants
are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the
Group is complied with the conditions attaching and that
the grants will be received.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024
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AEESEZRREMREEMEXNBNEENERER
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2024 2023

—E-|mE —E=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

97,127 121,186

176 249

814 329

250 80

S = 911 24
2,151 682
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS AND
SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers

Timing of revenue recognition

Types of goods or services
Concrete demolition services

Performance obligations for contracts with customers
The Group provides concrete demolition services to
customers. Such services are recognised as a performance
obligation satisfied over-time as the Group creates or
enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset
is created or enhanced. Revenue for these services is
therefore recognised over-time using output method, i.e.
based on surveys of the relevant services completed by
the Group to date with reference to certificates issued by
customers or payment applications. The directors of the
Company consider that output method would faithfully
depict the Group’s performance towards complete
satisfaction of these performance obligations in these
contracts under HKFRS 15.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with customers
The transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied)
as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 and the expected timing
of recognising revenue are as follows:

Revenue from construction contracts to be
recognised:
Within one year —FRA

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified
as the board of directors of the Company. The board of
directors regards the Group’s business as a single operating
segment and reviews consolidated financial statements
accordingly. Since this is the only operating segment of
the Group, no further analysis for segment information is
presented.

&3 4 0): 35
Over-time £ 3E — BRIy )

EmSRBER
R T I E AR5

e R R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE-_T_WF+_A=+—HIFE

Wi Rt AR KSR 5 EES (F)

REEEFEHNNKREDIF
2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT FHBT
97,127 121,186
97,127 121,186

EEAHNNBEHNER

FEERFFPREMABRLIFIRS - BFARBHEI RN
—RERRNERNENEE  REAAEBERIEIRT
—IHEE M BEEEAERREAFATPES - Fit
ZERBOWRAN —BRBARBESEZER  BRE
AEBESAEROERRBENBAET2EHFT P EH
VEESANAERF ARAESRR/ESESP MM
AEBEREERETEMBREEYEISHRETZEAD
THEHNEENRR -

TREEFENNBTERINEENREE

RZBEZNFR_E-_=F+_A=+—HOEZEHT
BHEMECREKRII D REK) HRZEHBERRED
TEHARSRE AN T ¢

15 T HER 2 EEA MM

2024 2023
—E_ME —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
20,667 47,240

TEEERRECBNRANTANELES -EEGHRAE
SEMEBRE—RE0H  THEEHSASMB]RE -
HRUEAAEENE - KEDH REUE2IHDBEH
B —F DT o
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For the year ended 31 December2024 #HZE—Z W&+ _A=+—HIFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS AND 5. W& HttARWEUAR D EER (&)
SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Geographical information i & & R
The Group primarily operates in Hong Kong and Macau. AEBFERBERRMEE - ASBERNERDEEE
The Group’s non-current assets are principally located in ZUREE - AEBRBAIINPEEMNEE KRB A THE :

Hong Kong. The Group’s revenue from external customers
is derived from the following regions:

2024 2023
—E-@mEF —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Revenue (by location of customers) Wz (BB P AT E)
- Hong Kong —&F 97,127 121,186
Information about major customers FEEFEH
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total HAEEBAKZBRBI0%HEPKREZ2H0T -
revenue of the Group are as follows:
2024 2023
—E-@OmF —T=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Customer A EFPA 19,894 N/A!
TEA
Customer B ®FB 19,774 N/A'
TEA
Customer C ®FC N/A!
FEMA 37,426
Customer D ®FD N/A"
TEA 16,510
Customer E BFE N/A’
TER 13,799
Customer F ®EF N/A!
TER 18,652
1 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the 7 HEEE M2 30 FE 1 K S AR 25 10% WA _F »
total revenue of the Group.
6. FINANCE COSTS 6. BE A
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHT
Interest on bank overdrafts RITEZF B 484 469
Interest on lease liabilities HEABNL 430 442
Interest on borrowings BEME 68 201
982 1,112
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PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Included in cost of sales
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Staff costs

Included in administrative and other operating
expenses
Auditors’ remuneration
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Expense relating to short-term leases not
included in the measurement of lease liabilities

7. BRATEHATEF

Staff cost, including directors’ emoluments

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2024, amount excluded
short-term director quarter lease expense of approximately
HK$960,000 (2023: HK$694,000) which are included in “Staff
costs, including directors’ emoluments” above.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES, INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Salaries, allowances and other benefits (Note) e
Retirement scheme contributions
— defined contribution plan

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme in
Hong Kong which comply with the requirements under the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) Schemes Ordinance. All
assets under the scheme are held separately from the Group
under independently administered funds. Contributions to
the MPF schemes follow the MPF Schemes Ordinance.

During the years ended and as at 31 December 2024
and 2023, no contribution was forfeited (by the Group on
behalf of its employees who leave the defined contribution
schemes prior to vesting fully in such contributions) and
be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contributions.

8.

R AL N HoAb A= (BT EE)
BB
—E MG B

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET
HERANBIE
W BERZRETE 3,549 4,787
FREEENE 1,124 679
8 TRRA 25,081 30,653
THRREMEEHRAT BIE
IZE RN B & 690 690
M BEREBITE 178 449
FRAEEERTE 3,468 3,545
KRt AHERGETENEHHERHE
RIBA S 660 720
BIRA (BIEESHMH) 18,142 16,401

i RBZZZ-_MF+-_A=+—BILFE $BEITBEIA
EXTETRA(BREEHFHM I NEREEEEIHERID
960,000 T (Z T = =4 : 694,000/ 7C) °

BEEFHNX  SEEEFH

2024 2023
—E-NE —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
42,128 45,847
1,095 1,207
43,223 47,054

AEBBRBARGERTED ([RES D FEEDHRE
EEERBEERARTE - ZABNBETHNRAEEERS
VESEEREAKENEENRIA - RS SHRX
RIERIE D A ENEBIFT -

REBEE—ZT-_NFER T -_=F+-_A=+—HLFE
EEXR WEHZE (REERENEBAHZCESREBR
REFEHEERFTEZEE) SR EAAREEREIREE
KT o

SBREEEZERARAR —ZONFEERS
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9. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 9. E=EMRER
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@) ESRFETHBAEHTM
The remuneration of each director and the chief BEERFETHRABREBEZE T _NFE_-_FT
executive for the years ended 31 December 2024 Z=F+ A=+t ALEFENHFRHEFNOT
and 2023 is set out below:
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits  Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e 2R BrcHE
ok ENEF METAL A @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TET AT TET THT
2024 —E_NF
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Cheung Shek On (Chaiman and ~ R$HZ %% (ZE#

Chief Executive Offcer) THAEH) - 3,003 100 2 3,105
Independent non-executive directors B B TTEE
Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond Bt 180 - - - 180
Mr. Chan Kwok Wing Kelvin (Note () BR824 (FT5E () 180 - - - 180
Mr. Chow Chun To (Note (i) PiELE (BEG) 166 - - - 166
Ms. Zhang Zhang (Note (i) RE L (B aE (i) 15 - - - 15
Mr. Xu Jiahao (Note (iv)) FRFEE (M (V) - s s - -
Mr. An Wen Long (Note (v)) TNELE (MFEW) - o = - -

541 3,003 100 2 3,646
2023 —E-=H
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Cheung Shek On (Chairmanand RS Z &4 (TE#

Chief Executive Offcer) TEAR) = 2,014 = 2 2,016
Mr. Kwok Shun Tim (Note (vi)) PanE A (V) - 1,200 - 12 1,212
Independent non-executive directors B R ITEE
Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond EEMEE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Chan Kwok Wing Kelvin (Note () BB 48 52 4 (P () 240 = = = 240
Mr. Chow Chun To (Note (i) BiRB 5 (M) 240 = = = 240

720 3,214 - 14 3,948
Notes: HieE -
(i) Resigned on 2 January 2025. i) RZT-_AF—A-HEF-
(ii) Resigned on 2 December 2024. (ii) KT _ME+-A-HEHE-
(iil Appointed on 2 December 2024. (il RZTZ-_MFE+-_A-HEZF-
(iv) Appointed on 2 January 2025 and resigned on 14 March (iv) R-ZE-_AF—A-BHEZAYR-_ZT-_RAF=A
2025. + PO B EHE ©
v) Appointed on 14 March 2025. v) RZFE-_AF=A+MHAEEE-
(vi) Resigned on 31 December 2023. (vi) R-B-_=F+_-_A=+—AHFF-
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9. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(@)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2024, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office (2023: Nil). Neither
the chief executive nor any of the directors has
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
one (2023: two) of them are directors for the year
ended 31 December 2024 whose emoluments are

e R R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE-_T_WF+_A=+—HIFE
9. EZEMRER(H)

(@) EBRTETHASHH(E)

BE_Z_WNF+_A=+—HLFE TEEL
BEAEEEMH - (FRIMAREEKIMAR
SERNEBHIIFERERMBE(CT_=F &) -

HE-Z-_WNF+-_A=1+—HLFE HEEXE
TN B s A 2 5 R EE 2k [R) & A 3 URCER 1) 57
(ZZ==F : ) -

(b) ZERSFMAL
BE_Z_WNF+_A=t—HLFE EE&RS
FIALHF R (ZT_=F WMB)REE  HF
WHRER EX -BE-ZT-_WFE+-_A=+—HIE

disclosed above. The emoluments in respect of the FE -HBTHR(ZZTZ=F: =F) ATHFH®W
remaining four (2023: three) individuals for the year S8
ended 31 December 2024 are as follows:
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
Salaries and allowances e &5%9\5 6,344 4,867
Discretionary bonuses H‘J 15IEL 342 198
Retirement scheme contributions RAK? +§|J R 52 39
6,738 5,104
The emoluments fell within the following band: HFMNFIATEE :
Number of individuals
A
2024 2023
—E-NE —Eo=F
Emolument band e
Nil-HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,00078 7T = =
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7 7T = 1,500,000 %8 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7% 7T & 2,000,000 /%5 7T 2 1
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 78 7T & 2,500,000 7 7T - 1
HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7 7T & 3,000,000 7 7T 1 -
During the year ended 31 December 2024, no REBEZE-ZT-_NF+-A=+—HLFE  A5E

emoluments were paid by the Group to the above
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office as a director or management of any members
of the Group (2023: Nil).

BEMNLESHMA LT ®H1’E7%7JD)\$%I
HIMAREBE RN ER KA EBIFAKER
MEFRERENBRBEE (T _=F 1 8) -

SBREEEZERARAR —ZONFEERS
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For the year ended 31 December2024 #HZE—Z W&+ _A=+—HIFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years. No provision for
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the consolidated
financial statements as the Group companies have no
taxable profits for the year ended 31 December 2024 and
the Group companies have utilized tax losses brought
forward to set off against the taxable profits for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

&R

F B NS B W E 5 E T st il 58 SR Bs A R TR
16.5% &1 & ° EEB(‘EI ABE-_ZTNFE+-A=+—
BUEFEYEERTEN - BEE QR S8 A AR RS
BREARHEBEE "2 =F+ _A=1+-BULFENE
AP A - A M SRR EATENSHAREME -

Macau profit tax is levied at a fixed rate of 12% on the SELP )15 % 4 8 38 600,000 S8 P # 0) FE SR B A IR 12%
taxable income above MOP$600,000. TE LR B -
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to profit FERERTESGAERREME2ERERAINKRME
before income tax per the consolidated statement of profit TR R PSRRI T -
or loss and other comprehensive income as follow:
2024 2023
—E-ME TE-=4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Profit before income tax B P15 4 A Vi 1 495 1,318
Calculated at a tax of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) HJR$ 16.5% (ZZE = =% : 16.5%)
= 82 217
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes KEIFH EIR 2 X 155 210
Income not subject to tax BAERBIBA (277) (162)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERBEBBIMETE 81 24
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised &) 8 %t Bl K R i B B 18 9) (785)
Tax effect of temporary differences AERERUZECHETE
not recognised (29) 487
Effect of different tax rate of group entity RBEBAINEERERELE
operation in jurisdiction other than Hong Kong SEEETRABEY ?ﬁ ’E. (3) 9
Income tax expense PS55I 3 = =
11. EARNINGS PER SHARE 11. SRER
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Profit attributable to owners of the KABHEE AREER (F&T)
Company (HK$’000) 495 1,318
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for  #tzt EFEFIM S K
the purpose of calculating earnings per share AR A T E (FAR)
(in thousand) 241,920 232,331
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FRERZF (1 0.20 0.57

The weighted average number of ordinary shares of
232,331,076 for the year ended 31 December 2023 in issue
during 2023, as adjusted to reflect the effect of the share
consolidation and the Rights Issue as disclosed in Note 19.

The diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings
per share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary share
in issue during the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023.
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R-EBE-_=FP%THE_ZTZ_=F+_-_A=+—81
FEET BB INEFE E232,331,076 0% - BREFAENU
R BRFTEE 19 BT BB AR 1D & 0 S AR IR A SR FE o

MREE T MER-F-=F+-A=+—ALF
ERYEEBTEEREEAR KEREFTRAER
EREARF -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE-_T_WF+_A=+—HIFE

SUBSIDIARIES 12. MIEAR

TRAERZZE-ZNFR_T-_=F+ZA=+—H8KH

The following is a list of the subsidiaries at 31 December

2024 and 2023: BARIEE
Principal
Place of incorporation activities and Particulars of Percentage of
Name and kind of legal entity place of operation issued share capital interest held
2R aMEIEEREERRER TEERRBELY  CRORARE PR pl
Platinum Faith Limited (Platinum Faith”) Limited liability company incorporated in Investment holding Ordinary share United 100% (direct)
the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI") States dollar
(US$")1,000
HEERAA (98] REBRAEE (RBRIEE)) RERER EBR1,000%7T 100% (E#)
M BRA A (IEx)
Alpha Eastern Holdings Limited (*Alpha Eastern Holdings”) Limited liability company incorporated in Investment holding Ordinary share US$1 100% (direct)
the BVI
SRERARAT ([2RER]) REBRRBESHMA LN ERAT RERR Lak1ET 100% (Ef%)
SRS T EEERAF (ranslated as Kingland Limited company incorporated in Macau Provision of concrete Ordinary share 100% (indirect)
Concrete Driling Company Limited) (‘Kingland Macau’) demolition services in MOP$25,000
Macau
RWERTEBERAR ((RERM]) RRMERR N BRAR RAMREERTRY  LRR25,00087%  100%(FE)
fR%
Kingland (Sino) Company Limited (*Kingland (Sino)’) Limited liability company incorporated in Provision of concrete Ordinary share HK$3 100% (indirect)
Hong Kong demolition services in
Hong Kong
R (KRZ) BRAF ([R8 (KPE)]) REBTMRINBRAR RERREERLFE LBR3%ET 100% (%)
%
Dragon Team Ventures Limited Limited liability company incorporated in Investment holding Ordinary share 100% (direct)
the BVI US$1,000
Dragon Team Ventures Limited REBRLBSHMRLHERAT REER iRk 1,005 100% (E%)
Kingever Construction Company Limited Limited liability company incorporated in Provision of construction  Ordinary share 1009% (indlrect)
(formerly known as IT Construction Limited) Hong Kong related services HK$10,000
2E(RTZ)ERAR (MIBRERERRAR) REREMRUABRAR R ERBRYE E@k10,000% 7T 100% (i)

SHEEZERERAR

—ENFEFERE
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13.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost
At 1 January 2023
Additions
Disposals

At 31 December 2023

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
At 1 January 2023
Charge for the year (Note 7)
Disposals

At 31 December 2023

Net book value
At 31 December 2023

Cost
At 1 January 2024
Additions
Disposals

At 31 December 2024

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
At 1 January 2024
Charge for the year (Note 7)
Disposals

At 31 December 2024

Net book value
At 31 December 2024

A
R-E-_=F—Hf—H
NE
K&

RZE-_=F
+-A=+—-H

ZHTERRE
R-ZE-=F—H—H
FRZE (M7
HE
i ——

+-ZRA=+-8

FEFE
RZEZ=F

+-RA=+-8

%
R-ZE-_NF—H—H
NE
HE
KT ZHF

TZRA=+-H

ZHERRE
RZZZmE—-A—A
FRZE (KT
HE
RZT -

+-A=+-8H

REFE
RZT

+-A=+-8H

13. Y¥ - BERRE
Plant and Furniture Office Motor

machinery and fixtures equipment vehicles Total
BER#KS BRREE PRERE AE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TR THx TR TR
57,569 4,480 321 11,427 73,797
453 408 - - 861
(268) - - - (268)
57,754 4,888 321 11,427 74,390
49,306 4,125 290 11,090 64,811
4,450 434 15 337 5,236
(268) - - - (268)
53,488 4,559 305 11,427 69,779
4,266 329 16 - 4,611
57,754 4,888 321 11,427 74,390
2,503 62 - 45 2,610
(700) (3) - (355) (1,058)
59,557 4,947 321 11,117 75,942
53,488 4,559 305 11,427 69,779
3,549 161 12 5 3,727
(700) 2 - (315) (1,017)
56,337 4,718 317 11,117 72,489
3,220 229 4 - 3,453




14. RIGHT-OF-USE-ASSETS

Cost
At 1 January 2023
Additions
Disposal

At 31 December 2023

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
At 1 January 2023
Charge for the year (Note 7)
Disposal

At 31 December 2023

Net book value
At 31 December 2023

Cost
At 1 January 2024
Additions
Disposal

At 31 December 2024

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
At 1 January 2024
Charge for the year (Note 7)
Disposal

At 31 December 2024

Net book value
At 31 December 2024

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE-_T_WF+_A=+—HIFE

14.
PR 7R

R-_B_=F—A—H

nE

HE
RZZE-Z=F+=-A=+—H
BErERREAE
R-B_=F—A—H
FRZH (FEE7)

HE
RZZE-Z=F+=-A=+—H
BREEE
RZEZ=F+=R=+—H
BN

R-ZT-FE—A—H

NE

HE
RZZE-—NF+=-A=+—H
B mERRE
R-ZT-NFE—A—H
FREH (M&E7)

HE
RZZE-—NF+=-A=+—H
BREFEE

RZEZMF+=ZA=+—H

The right-of-use assets are depreciated over the lease term.

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income relating to leases:

EREEE

Office Plant and Motor
premises machinery vehicles Total
MOAEYE KERKSE RE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHET FHT
6,886 5,328 5,051 17,265
2,401 1,854 - 4,255
(2,553) - - (2,553)
6,734 7,182 5,051 18,967
1,481 5,217 2,241 8,939
2,716 498 1,010 4,224
(2,553) - - (2,553)
1,644 5,715 3,251 10,610
5,090 1,467 1,800 8,357
6,734 7,182 5,051 18,967
- 2,300 992 3,292
- - (323) (323)
6,734 9,482 5,720 21,936
1,644 5,715 3,251 10,610
2,645 943 1,004 4,592
- - (323) (323)
4,289 6,658 3,932 14,879
2,445 2,824 1,788 7,057

ERREENEHAITE -

REcEakEtralaRERZAREE 2

Depreciation on right-of-use assets

Interest expenses on lease liabilities

Expense related to short-term leases (including
director’s quarter)

Short-term leases are leases related to premises.

2024 2023

—E-MmE —E-=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FHBT

FRAEEERE 4,592 4,224

HEAERNERX 430 442
HEHHAEEEIMY

(BIEESES) 1,620 1,414

RHHEEYEREENEE -

SHEEZERERAR

—ENFEFERE
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15.

16.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial assets SREE
Amortised cost B S PK AR

Financial liabilities cRBeE
Amortised cost SR AR

CONTRACT ASSETS

Contract assets ABHEE

Less: allowance for credit losses

At 1 January 2023, contract assets amounting to
approximately HK$12,805,000.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because
the rights are conditioned on factors other than passage
of time. The contract assets are transferred to trade
receivables when the rights become unconditional.

Retention receivables included in contract assets
represents the Group’s right to receive consideration for
work performed and not yet billed because the rights are
conditional on the satisfaction of the service quality by
the customers over a certain period as stipulated in the
contracts. The contract assets are transferred to the trade
receivables when the rights become unconditional, which
is typically at the expiry date of the period for the provision
of assurance by the Group on the service quality of the
construction work performed by the Group.

The Group classifies these contract assets as current
because the Group expects to realise them in its normal
operating cycle.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected credit loss provision
for contract assets. To measure the expected credit losses,
contract assets have been grouped based on same credit
risk characteristics.

See note 3.1 for further information about expected credit
loss provision.
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15.

16.

B EEEERE

BEREsZEMIA
2024 2023
—E-mE —T=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
34,364 40,341
36,387 47,336
EHNEE
2024 2023
—E-mE —FEZ=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
17,895 19,984
(2,338) (3,222)
15,557 16,762

RZZEZ=F—A—H &8EEH%12,805000ET °

AREETBZEAREMRC ERMALAKRENTIER
BRI SR IEEZ?%?’HJEX?&JB’MS%H%F&mwﬁz
SAEE - ERAKAEGHE  ANEEERS

JE W3R -

FARKBENRUERSEASRERD M AL A
EEﬁE@IEHﬁZHM{EE’U%ﬂ RARZEENAFEP
RENBRENE THRAYRBEEBRTRER T AEE -
?S.:Z%%?’FWZ?%%I 1¢H¢(Eﬂ@%5’\zﬁ‘il?¢ﬁi§ﬂﬁ’]§$
ETRMRGEER‘FREHRNEREY) ANEE
BREEHREE -

AEEBZEANEEDBEARY RAREEBAHRE
RELEZERHNERZEEE

AEEEABBHBHREELFIFAARENBCITER
HHEEBRARER ZENATRANEELR2
HENEEBREE "RABHYEERE SWEE
TREAAREERREHOME -

FHAREEEREENE—SER  F2HMWES1 -
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Less: allowance for credit losses

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments

Notes:

The credit terms granted to customers are varied and are
generally the result of negotiations between individual customers
and the Group. The Group generally allows a credit period of
within 60 days. No interest is charged on overdue receivables.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of allowance for
credit losses based on invoice date, is as follows:

0-30 days 0ZF30H
31-60 days 31£60H
61-90 days 61Z90H
91-365 days 91 % 365H

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for expected
credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of
the lifetime expected credit loss provision for trade receivables. To
measure the expected credit losses, these receivables have been
grouped based on same credit risk characteristics.

See note 3.1 for further information about expected credit loss
provision.

As at 31 December 2024, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of approximately HK$3,359,000 (2023: HK$6,605,000) which are
past due and which impairment loss had not been provided for to
be of good credit quality and they are expected to be recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
Include in the past due balance of approximately HK$494,000
(2023: HK$121,000) has been past due 90 days or more and is
not considered as in default based on good repayment records
for those debtors and continuous business with the Group.

B 5 EUWGRIA
B EEBERE

e R R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE-_T_WF+_A=+—HIFE

17. ESREMEWKRFIE

Hip IR - me RIAMN R

2024 2023
—E-mE T =F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHT
11,489 14,141
(5,399) (5,220)
6,090 8,921
5,971 6,173
12,061 15,094

BEFRPZEERSETR  —RAENRFEAEEERS
o AEE—RETE0RRNZEEN - WEM BB KKIEA
WER RIS o

B 5 UG (MR EEBRER) RERAHNREAITNAT :

2024 2023
—E-EF —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
2,277 1,302
2,341 5,232

621 1,144

851 1,243

6,090 8,921

FEERAEEMEREEANEORARENGLITELTED
FHZEME  ZEAATHE ZREGRER 2 RES
EEBREE - S ERHMEEER  ZEFRRFAETIRENR
REEREFEHDLE -

EHEHEEBRRENE-SER  F2HME31 -

R-E-_ME+-A=+—8 FAEEBEFRERFBLEHEE
#8858 493,359,000 % 7T (=T = =4 : 6,605,000/ 7T) K &
WHRBCHE  EHREEEERIFEEHAIKE - KRBT
RABEEREE AEEVERZSERBEEMERR -8
HA 4 #4249 494,000 7T (= =4 : 121,000 7T) B #1190
HekbA k- BERBREZSEMIEN RITE R RIFE
REEETERLT W RELD -

SBREEEZERARAR —ZONFEERS
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18. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, CASH AND BANK 18.

BALANCES AND BANK OVERDRAFTS

Pledged bank deposits (Note (i)
Cash and bank balances

Less: bank overdrafts (Note (i)

Notes:

(i) As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s bank deposits were (0] R=-=
pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities and bank RE
borrowings. The pledged bank deposits carry interest rates RS
ranging from 0.885% to 4.200% (2023: 0.625% to 4.200%) per g

annum.

(ii) The Group’s bank overdrafts carry variable interest rates ranging (ii) R
from 4.875% to 5.125% (2023: 4.625% to 4.875%) per annum. f——

BIEFRTER BERBITEHRURBIITEX
2024 2023
—E-MmE —EB-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
B ERITE R (B () 15,259 14,757
B RIRTTA ﬁ% 8,520 11,882
23,779 26,639
A BRITIE S (B R (i) (9,847) (9,651)
13,932 16,988

Hat

—MEF-AS+—A  AEEOBRTERDERIER

i fmﬂlé“&ﬂ?fﬂ EHOHEAR G o

A

E]
F 1 4.625% £ 4.875%) &

E?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ1?ﬁm?§z$%‘J
£0.885% & 4.200% (= Z = =4 : 0.625% £ 4.200% ) &

E@i&mﬁs‘z&%ﬁbigﬁ$4.875%§5.125% (=%

19. SHARE CAPITAL 19. B
Number of Share
ordinary shares capital
ZBEREE &S
HK$'000
FHT
Authorised EE
As at 1 January 2023 of HK$0.01 each R-ZE-_=F—HF—H"
SHREEO.01B T 1,000,000,000 10,000
Additional authorised share capital (Note (a)) LA TE IR (B3t (@) 1,000,000,000 10,000
Share consolidation (Note (a)) & & B (FtsE(a) (1,600,000,000) =
As at 31 December 2023 and 2024 of RZTEZ=FR=_FT_NF+=A
HK$0.05 each =+—H SREAECET 400,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid ERTRAR
As at 1 January 2023 of HK$0.01 each R-—ZT=—=F—F—8"
EREEOC.O1 AT 806,400,000 8,064
Share consolidation (Note (a)) &0 & B (Bt 3E () (645,120,000) =
Issue of shares in respect of rights issue (Note (b)) #h B #1719 (M 5L (b)) 80,640,000 4,032
As at 31 December 2023 and 2024 of RZEZ=FR-_F-_NF+=A
HK$0.05 each =+—H BREECET 241,920,000 12,096
Notes: Kt
@ Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the extraordinary (@ BER-_T-_=FhHA th AEARRARIRERRIAEG LRAHN
general meeting of the Company on 17 May 2023, i) increase in LMARER 1) B BREIME R 1,000 000,000%5&?’%‘?‘}%&@% -
authorised share capital of the Company from HK$10,000,000 A B RS TE B AN FR 10,000, OOO/ETE( DA ,OO0,000,000 F% A%
divided into 1,000,000,000 shares to HK$20,000,000 divided into ) ¥ Hh = 20,000,000 /% 7T (9 %4 2,000,000,000 A% B 17) & Kii)
2,000,000,000 shares by the creation of additional 1,000,000,000 9 TSGR E0.01 %5 71 Y B 5517 B AR BT 19 VV?W%*HX
new unissued shares; and ii) every five issued and unissued BREMBECSETHNENHRN #PN T _=FAA++tH
shares of HK0.01 each were consolidated into one consolidated Ao
share of HK$0.05 each, the changes took effect on 17 May 2023.
(b) On 6 April 2023, the Board of Directors proposed to conduct the
rights issue on the basis of one rights shares (“Rights Share(s)”) for (o) RZZB-_=FWANA EFEERENEHAH (=T ==
every two shares held on the record date of 30 May 2023 at the FRA=1H) BHAMBRROERE —RERRG (THERRMD 1)
subscription price of HK$0.185 per Rights Share (“Rights Issue”), M EEREESRERRD 01858 TEITHEAR ([E&R]) -
to raise gross proceeds up to approximately HK$14.92 million, % 185517 5 % 80,640,000 AR AL IR IR 17 % 45 P /8 SR IB 48 38 5 5 4
and after deduction of Rights Issue expenses of approximately 14.92 B @B T (MG AR H1.1 BEBT) °

HK$1.1 million, by way of issuing up to 80,640,000 Rights
Shares. The Rights Issue became unconditional on 23 June 2023
and was completed on 29 June 2023.
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20.

21.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RESERVES

Share premium

Share premium is the excess of the proceeds received over
the nominal value of the shares of the Company issued at
a premium, less expenses incurred in connection with the
issue of the shares.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the reserve arose pursuant to the
corporate reorganisation for the purpose of the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 22 November
2016 as to attract and retain the best available personnel
and to provide additional incentive to the eligible participants
under the Scheme.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company may
at their absolute discretion and subject to the terms of
the Scheme, grant options to any employees (full-time or
part-time), directors, consultants or advisors, distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners or service providers of the Group, to subscribe for
shares of the Company. The eligibility of any participants to
the grant of any options shall be determined by the directors
from time to time on the basis of the directors’ opinion as
to their contribution to the development and growth of the
Group.

The aggregate number of the Company’s shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other
share options schemes of the Company must not exceed
30% of the Company’s shares in issue from time to time.
No options may be granted under the Scheme or any other
share options schemes of the Company if this will result in
the limit being exceeded. The maximum number of shares
issuable upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company as from the adoption date must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of all the shares in issue upon the date on
which the shares are listed and permitted to be dealt in the
Stock Exchange. The 10% limit may be refreshed at any
time by approval of the Company’s shareholders in general
meeting provided that the total number of the Company’s
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Scheme and any other share options
schemes of the Company must not exceed 10% of the
Company'’s shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
refreshed limit.

e R R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE-_T_WF+_A=+—HIFE

20.

21.

e

R A3 1E
B tn )i (B FR R0 (B 1T PR 1S RIR S A R Bl i A0 T
ENERE NBRBITROMEENFRZ -

BB
EOHREBREARRATBRNNBR A LT RIEEXEHEN
EENFE -

BT E

ARBBRBER-_F—ARE+ A+ _HBBZIRAR
RinEE AT B ([ZRTE)) - EERARBERHEA
BRAZsEzA AR RERMEINER -

Rigzatd ARAREZA 2 RHBERZE 2GR
RALBEMES (ZBIFER) EF  AAALEM -
DHEE AR HER RE - BF  BEBHIRE
HEFEO ZBRE URBARAKRND - EFA T
RIBEER A2 EEHAREEERNIEEZ BRI EE K
SERBERRZER -

HRE %A B R AR RHEM A ERET SR EEH
RITERZABBTEINBRBEETEMA THRITZAR
AR MEH  TREBEHARBTESETRMNZ30% °
AR R 5% mT 8 S AR 1 B ) H B A 5t 81 % th BB ke
SEHBHZ LR MTNEROERE - R A HE
RIFZET S R AR BEME MBS E S TRE Z
AEBRERETEMA THTZRNEE LR aRAE
BHERONRERZr LT REEEE R A2 MEETRNG
Z10% ° % 10% LR A BE R X AR K & 7 AR R ) R R 4t
MR TAER - ERRBZ S RAREHERE M EK
BB TREZMBEBREETEMA TRITZAR
ARG AR PEBHIEREN IREBAQFD #
T 210% °
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21.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) under the Scheme
or any other share option schemes of the Company in any
12-month period up to date of grant shall not exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue. Where any further
grant of options to a participant under the Scheme would
result in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of all options granted and to be granted to such participant
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
in the 12-month period up to and including the date of
such further grant representing in aggregate over 1% of
the shares in issue, such further grant must be separately
approved by shareholders of the Company in general
meeting with such participant and his/her close associates
abstaining from voting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
respective associates must be approved by the independent
non-executive directors of the Company (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is the grantee).
Where any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of
the Company, or any of their respective close associates
would result in the total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options already granted
and to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company to such person in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue and having an aggregate value in excess
of HK$5 million must be approved by the Company’s
shareholders at the general meeting of the Company, with
voting to be taken by way of poll.

The offer of a grant of share options might be accepted in
writing within 7 days from the date of the offer. An option
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period as the directors may
determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of
grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.
A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance
of the grant of an option with a remittance in favour of the
Company within such time as may be specified in the offer
(which shall not be later than 7 days from the date of the
offer).

The subscription price shall be a price solely determined
by the board of directors of the Company and notified to a
participant and shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date; (i) the
average closing prices of the Company’s shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date; and (i) the
nominal value of the Company’s share on the offer date.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten
years commencing on 22 November 2016, subject to early
termination provisions contained in the Scheme.

No share options were granted since the adoption of the
Scheme and there were no share option outstanding as at
31 December 2024 and 2023.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE-_T_WF+_A=+—HIFE

BORROWINGS B8
2024 2023
—E-ME —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Bank borrowing (Notes (i) & (ii)) RITEE (B () R (i) 977 2,732
Total borrowings REE 977 2,732
Analysed as: DR
Non-current liabilities FRBARE - -
Current liabilities UEJN=NE 977 2,732
977 2,732
Notes: et
i) The effective interest rate on the variable-rate bank borrowings [0] RZT-_ME+-_A=+—H0 ZERITEEZEEFENEN
were ranging from 3.6% to 7.1% (2023: 3.6% to 7.2%) per T36%ETA% (ZTE_=ZF :36%E7.2%) - AEBMRITE
annum as at 31 December 2024. The Group’s bank borrowings BHEEIRRITFRA 15,250,000 7T « A AREH 2 BXE
are secured by pledged bank deposits of approximately 78,000,000 7T R E F R 5% £ R AT E FFR E A ST ERE
HK$15,259,000, corporate guarantee of HK$8,000,000 as ZBAERIEER -
issued by the Company, and personal guarantee provided by the
director, Mr. Cheung Shek On and the former director, Mr. Chan
Yuk Sing.
(ii) All bank borrowing of the Group as at 31 December 2024 and (ii) AEBR T _NER T -_=F+-_A=1+—HZMART
2023 contain unconditional repayment on demand clauses and BEEYREREREFREERNERLFATHEE -
are included in current liabilities.
LEASE LIABILITIES HEAE
2024 2023
—EIMFE —EC-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Lease liabilities comprise: HEAaR
Within one year —FRA 4,477 4,250
In more than one year but not BR—FETBBME
more than two year 848 3,766
In more than two years but not BRFETNBBRS
more than five years 952 79
6,277 8,095
Less: amount due for settlement with 12 months & : IWRBIBE N HIRa91218 A R
shown under current liabilities BRI EA ke (4,477) (4,250)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months F Vink2) T T@JT\EI’\J 121 A &
shown under non-current liabilities %E’J 1,800 3,845

For both years, the Group leases various offices, motor
vehicles and plant and machinery for its operations with
lease term of 2 to 5 years (2023: 2 to 5 years). Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain different
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines
the period for which the contract is enforceable.

RREFERN AEEHEZERIE  REALREE
&%Eﬁ,\,\**kﬁﬁwﬁ HER2E26F (ZF_=F: 28
5%F) - HE MR RE R ZERRD - I B 2E TR GER
Kt - EEEHBRFGE I IRERRNRERS - K
SEHERAGHNESE  WETA LA ARG AITHHM -

SBREEEZERARAR —ZONFEERS
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For the year ended 31 December2024 #HZE—Z W&+ _A=+—HIFE

23. LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 23. HEEE A
At 31 December 2024, lease liabilities of approximately RZTEZMF+=ZA=+—H  HEEE#3,626,000%
HK$3,626,000 (2023: HK$2,702,000) are secured by T (ZEZ=%F :2,702,000 L) NHASEER - ==
the Group’s motor vehicles and plant and machinery with F+-—A=Z+—HZEEELHH4L612,00F T (=ZF
carrying amount of approximately HK$4,612,000 (2023: Z =% :3,267,000#70) 2 B LA R HE KR EER o
HK$3,267,000) as at 31 December 2023.

24. DEFERRED INCOME 24, EEWA
Government grants have been received towards the cost E RS AN R T # B © s SRIE D AR ERIRIEW A ©
of machinery. The amount has been treated as deferred ZHRERHEEEMNAERAFHANEREEIRA - 58
income. The amount is transferred to income over the REE T AUA 250,000787C (ZFE =4 : 80,0008 7T) °
useful lives of the relevant assets. This has results in a R-ZZE-—WHFE+=—A=+—H 950,000 T (=ZT==
credit to income in the current year of HK$250,000 (2023: o) DR -

HK$80,000). As at 31 December 2024, HK$950,000 (2023:
Nil) remains to be amortised.

2024 2023
—E-MEF —T-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Analysed as: DA
Current & 300 -
Non-current ERB 650 -
950 -
25. DEFERRED TAXATION 25, EERIIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the years REFENELEHBEAESLHOT :
are as follows:
ECL Tax Lease Right of
provision  Taxlosses depreciation Liability ~ Use assets Total
RHEE
EERE REFE RERE HESE HRAEEE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL THEL TEL TEL TET TAT

At 1 January 2023 (restated) RZFEZ=F—-A—H (&%) - (280) 280 (892) 892 =
Charge/(credit) to profitorloss R840k / (Gt A) - 280 (280) 52 (62) -
At 31 December 2023 RZZEZ=F+-A=+—H - - - (840) 840 =
Charge/(credit) to profit or loss Rz H1% / (tA) - - - 437 (437) -
At 31 December 2024 RZE-ME+-A=+—H - - - (403) 403 -
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27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$117 million (2023:
HK$116 million), which are available for offset against
future profits that may be carried forward indefinitely
and are subject to approval from the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department and estimated unused tax losses of
approximately HK$15 million (2023: HK$15 million) arising
from subsidiaries operating outside Hong Kong which
are available to offset against future taxable profit of that
subsidiary and due to expire within one to three years and
are subject to approval from the Financial Services Bureau
of the Macau Special Administrative Region. In addition, the
Group has deductible temporary differences associated with
decelerated tax depreciation amounting to approximately
HK$1 million (2023: HK$1.2 million).

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax asset
been recognised in respect of the estimated unused tax
losses and the deductible temporary differences associated
with decelerated tax depreciation due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables

Accruals and other payables

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice
date is as follows:

B 5 N RIA
FERT R E AN 5RIR

e R R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE-_T_WF+_A=+—HIFE

25.

26.

ELERIE (])

RIBEBRER  AEBNGETASEREBIENA117TE
g5 (= 7:—¢ 6B &BIT) « Al &R AR AE s LUK
EABEF  HEARSEBREBOE  MEFTEMN

57|\im@@%a@Mﬁ%@ﬂ%iﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ@%%)f&lﬁiéﬂé,%@z%
155%;‘%%(:@5:£¢ 3 155%;’5%) %f&iﬁ’;%ﬁ

NGILEOF i iﬁq)ﬁ/ﬁ
fa-/QF'EJ%%IJﬁEAIEﬁﬁﬁﬁz}%mﬁt/& ﬁt&l\vwilﬁéﬁi/m
REETEEANANREREEEN1EEEL (=22
TZFE12BEEBT) °

RS HR - B R BE TR R A0S FI AR - SO st i 5

0-30 days 0&30H

31-60 days 31E260H
61-90 days 61290 H
Over 90 days Q0 H Mk

REA TRIEJEHTE&EQH R TEITE B B A A HR AR
EERABLERIBEE -
ESRHEMENRE
2024 2023
—E-ME —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHT
9,982 16,354
6,692 6,891
16,674 23,245
BIEREHHENBESENFERESTOT ¢
2024 2023
—E-ME —T=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
1,541 781
612 948
588 1,856
7,241 12,769
9,982 16,354

Trade payables are non-interest bearing.
AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS

The amounts due to directors are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand.

27.

BHRERNFALTEHE -
ENESEHRE

ENEEFIRAEER  THELARERER -
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For the year ended 31 December2024 #HZE—Z W&+ _A=+—HIFE

28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 28.

CASH FLOWS

(@)

(b)

Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net (a)
cash generated from operations

FEREREBRME

BRASHRAIGANEEEEENR S FENER

2024 2023
—E-WmE —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
Profit before income tax FR FAS B0 A & ) 495 1,318
Adjustments for: BTy S EFAE
Depreciation of property, plant and W BERRETE
equipment 3,727 5,236
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEENE 4,592 4,224
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BB KR HERE
equipment (911) (24)
Other non-current liabilities HEMIEREAE 29 15
Provision for,/ (reversal of) impairment losses & R & E L& HEE
on financial assets and contract assets BERERE (BE) 3,731 (778)
Interest expense BB X 982 1,112
Interest income FEWA (814) (329)
Amortisation of government grants BRI 478 B 8 £ (250) (80)
Operating profit before working capital changes % 1& & 4 & 8 il &8 &% 7 11,581 10,694
Decrease, (increase) in contract assets BWEERD (3G M) 1,168 (3,577)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 & E A B WGR IR 1 0 (661) (2,140)
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 & H A sRIER A (6,571) (882)
Decrease of other non-current liabilities HidEmga@E@ms (81) -
Increase in deferred income I FE U A S N 1,200 =
Net cash generated from operations REFEBHNRESTE 6,636 4,095
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing b) BMEFTBHELEMNEEHR:
activities:
Amounts
due Lease
to directors  Borrowings liabilities
EAEERE BE HEaE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2023 R-ZE-_=%—HF—H 3,962 5,907 8,062
Interest on lease liabilities HEABHNE S = 442
Addition from new leases REFHEZRE S S 4,255
Cash flows BenE (349) (3,175) (4,664)
At 31 December 2023 R-ZTE-_=F+=-A=+—H 3,613 2,732 8,095
Interest on lease liabilities HEABANES - - 430
Addition from new leases REMHEEZRE - - 3,270
Cash flows BenE (1,001) (1,755) (5,518)
At 31 December 2024 R-ZZE-_NME+=-ZHA=+—H 2,612 977 6,277
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29.

30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(c) Cash outflows for leases:

Amounts include in the statement of cash flows for
leases comprise the followings:

Within operating cash flows
Within financing cash flows

Total cash flows for lease

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to
control, jointly control or exert significant influence over the
other party in making financial or operational decisions.
Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject
to common control or joint control. Related parties may be
individuals or other entities.

(@) Apart from disclosures elsewhere and in note 27 to
the consolidated financial statements, the Group did
not have any significant related party transaction with
related parties during the year.

(b)  The emoluments of the directors and senior

BREERERE
BREBERERE

HERTREAR

e R R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE-_T_WF+_A=+—HIFE
28. WmEBRLRERMT (F)

() HERERE:
FAREREXRZEESHEBIBEUTRE

2024 2023
—E-mE T =F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
1,620 1,414
5,518 4,664
7,138 6,078

2. BAEAFRSB

BT RZEARIES - BA R BSRE
ERARBREHEMITITEEAZENNAL - HEHKA
EHHBAENNET  TRESBEE -BESTAR
BASEMEL -

@ FREMMBTRESMBMKRME7THREIN - K
SERFAL BEMERENTETHEABESTR
5 °

b EFERSARAEBAEMEIEEEAR)RFAN

executives (representing the key management T -
personnel) during the year are as follows:
2024 2023
—EME =%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e B REMET 10,898 10,886
Retirement benefits schemes contribution RIREMET IR 76 106
10,974 10,992
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 30. HARER

The Group, in the ordinary course of its business, is involved
in various claims, suits, investigations, and legal proceedings
that arise from time to time. Although the Group does not
expect that the outcome in any of these legal proceedings,
individually or collectively, will have a material adverse effect
on its financial position or results of operations, litigation is
inherently unpredictable. Therefore, the Group could incur
judgements or enter into settlements of claims that could
adversely affect its operating results or cash flows in a
particular period.

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at the end
of the reporting period.

AEERAFEBRIED S R ARELNSIARE FR -
AEFEREF - BEAEBEL N ERERZETERF
REER (BRER AR SHEMBRRREERE
BRERERTNZE  EFBR T HIATR » Et - &
SENEMBMKLHRKTIREMAE  MAEHEX
—HRNEEREA RS REBUINTE -

AEBNREPRLBEEALABE -

SBREEEZERARAR —ZONFEERS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE-—T-—W&+-A=+—ALLFE

31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 31. BEAXRERIE
2024 2023
—E-ME —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition BRI RTELR A IS RER T B
of property, plant and equipment contracted for EHBEBAKEDE  BERZED
but not provided in the consolidated financial BEARRX
statements 273 1l
32. DIVIDENDS 32. RE
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders RZTZHF - AR A E R R AR R s Ik
of the Company during 2024, nor has any dividend been MNIRE  BEREARURTERZZRNEMRS (ZF
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2023: Nil). Z=F ) e
33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 33. AQNRMBRRRREEEE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position (@) BB RRE

2024 2023
—E-NEF T =F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FREEE
Investment in subsidiaries BB AR ZIRE 9,768 9,768
Current assets REEE
Prepayments TERTFRIE 329 291
Cash and cash equivalents BeRReEEY 5,579 9,923
5,908 10,214
Total assets EEHAE 15,676 19,982
EQUITY ER
Capital and reserves EXAREE
Share capital &N 12,096 12,096
Reserves ] (2,561) 1,652
Total equity ERBE 9,535 13,748
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables HE MR «TJ\ 362 455
Amounts due to subsidiaries KB A 5,779 5,779
Total liabilities BEAT 6,141 6,234
Total equity and liabilities BEREEH4E 15,676 19,982
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(AaE) BEFRE (233) 3,980
Total assets less current liabilities EERABERRBERE 9,535 13,748

The Company’s statement of financial position were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 25 March 2025
by:

and signed on its behalf

Cheung Shek On
RBR
Director

EF
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ZIN/N

A ERARER - E_AFE=A-+hHE%E

EEefaRRETE YA TIEERRER

Tam Tak Kei Raymond
EER
Director
EF



33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE-_T_WF+_A=+—HIFE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 33. AQATUBEMRRRREHEEE ()
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Reserve movement

Balance as at 1 January 2023
Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year

Issue of shares in respect of rights issue
Share issuance cost of rights issue

Balance as at 31 December 2023

Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2024

(b) FHERD
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
R E 25T EB1E st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET
RZZBZ=F—A—HOEH 64,575 (67,303) (2,728)
FAEEREERAS L
- (5,392) (5,392)
AR EEITIRD 10,887 - 10,887
AR B AR A7 BT AR (1,115) - (1,115)
RZITEB_=F+_HA=+—H
B A5 R 74,347 (72,695) 1,652
FRNEEREERZEE
- (4,213) (4,213)
R=ZFB-NMFE+=A=+—H
B 4 R 74,347 (76,908) (2,561)

SREEEZERERAR -2

MEFERE
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Financial Summary
MBS

RESULTS ]

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group R AR ERGEMBERECAEERBEREAMBRFEENE
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited BARBERBEBEREHINOAT -
consolidated financial statements is set out below.

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—RHLEFE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-NE —T-o=F —T-— —ZF=— T -TF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET FAT FAT FHET
Revenue & 97,127 121,186 75,662 101,673 108,852
Profit/(loss) attributable to RRRHER AEL
owners of the Company B (E51E) 495 1,318 (9,032) (41,003) (66,070)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
At 31 December
R+=—A=+—A8
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—EoNE —T-_=F —T__F —E_—F _—T_TF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FHET FHT FHT FHET
Total assets BEHE 61,907 71,463 60,806 74,455 100,868
Total liabilities BEBEE (38,027) (48,078) (52,543) (57,160) (63,831)
Total equity W AR 23,880 23,385 8,263 17,295 37,037
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